
Acton-Boxborough Special Education

Parent Advisory Council (AB SEPAC)

Business Meeting Agenda
Wednesday, April 12, 2023, at 7 p.m. Virtual Meeting Over Zoom

To attend: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88216396903
To call in: +1 646 876 9923 Meeting ID: 882 1639 6903

I. Call to Order

II. Approval of Minutes
Review and approval of March 15, 2023, meeting minutes

III. Organization/Business Issues
A. Updates from the Director of Special Education
B. District Proposal to Add Assistant Director of Special Education (See 4/13/23 School

Committee Meeting Packet, pages 79-88)
1. Rationale, Responsibilities, and Budget Factors
2. Implications for Families & the SEPAC

C. SEPAC Participation On District Bullying Prevention Plan Review Team
D. Discuss Revising SEPAC By-Laws Regarding Meeting Attendance Requirement for

Officer Candidacy (Potential Vote 5/17/23)
E. Upcoming School Committee Elections
F. Other AB SEPAC Priorities for 2022-2023

1. Outreach & Community Building
a. SEPAC Introduction at 3/27/23 Early Childhood Program PTA Meeting
b. Brendan Mahan & ADHD Essentials Presentation
c. Autism Programming Feedback Form Open 4/24/23
d. Scheduling Meetings RE: Reported Issues at High School

IV. New Business – Other topics on people’s minds

V. Open Issues
A. MCAS performance vulnerable for students with disabilities
B. Mandatory special education training/professional development for regular and

special education staff – hiring dual-certified staff
C. Increasing opportunities for meaningful inclusion across domains
D. Enhanced Extended School Year, before-, and after-school programming
E. Increased use of technology in IEP development, revision, & communication
F. Following up on issues and subgroup trends identified via 2021-2022

parent/guardian survey
G. Need for consistent K-12 executive functioning curriculum

VI. Adjournment

VII. Next Meeting
Wednesday, May 17, 2023, at 7 p.m. Over Zoom (Meeting ID: 882 1639 6903)

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88216396903




FYI 

• Proposed ABRSC Meetings for 2023-2024

• ABRSD Cartwheel-DMG Workshop - 3/31/23

• Monthly Student Enrollment - 4/1/23

• Acton and Boxborough Town Election Calendars

5. ADJOURN (9:15)

Posted on April 7, 2023 at 8:00 am 

NEXT MEETINGS: May 4 & May 18 at ABRSC at 7:00 p.m. in the Admin. Building Auditorium 

To develop engaged, well-balanced learners through collaborative, caring relationships. 

WELLNESS • EQUITY • ENGAGEMENT













           
 

Our Mission is to prepare all students to attain their full potential as life-long learners, critical thinkers, 
and productive citizens of our diverse community and global society. 

Acton-Boxborough Regional School District 
16 Charter Road   Acton, MA  01720 

978-264-4700 x 3211  fax: 978-264-3340 
www.abschools.org 

 

 

Marie Altieri 
Deputy Superintendent 

To:  Acton-Boxborough Regional School Committee 
Date: April 7, 2023 
Re:   School Choice Hearing 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
In 2021 the School Committee voted to fully withdraw from the School Choice program after fifteen 
years of only opening enough seats for siblings of existing School Choice students. The decision to phase 
out of the School Choice program was based on space constraints across all of our schools. Attached is 
an advisory of how the School Choice program works. The School Committee needs to vote each year to 
withdraw. We still have 10 School Choice students in our schools, who have been accepted as siblings of 
previously accepted School Choice students. Once students are accepted, they stay with us through 
twelfth grade. We receive $5,000 for each School Choice students, although our per pupil costs are over 
$15,000.  
 
Our current school choice enrollment includes: 

10 Total Students 
  3 Blanchard 
  0 R. J. Grey Jr. High 
  7 Acton-Boxborough Regional High School 

Now that we do not have any siblings of existing school choice students to enroll, we are recommending 
that Acton-Boxborough Regional School District continue to withdraw from the School Choice program. 
The School Committee must hold a posted hearing, which has been scheduled for 7:15 on April 13th, 
2023.  As you can see, it has taken many years to phase out of participation in the school choice 
program while accommodating current choice families being able to keep siblings in the our district.  
Please see the attached advisory with information about School Choice. 

Recommended VOTE for the April 13, 2023 meeting: 

The Acton-Boxborough Regional School Committee moves to remain withdrawn from the School Choice 
program due to class size and space limitations. Existing school choice students will remain through 
graduation.    









RJ Grey Junior High School Update 
April  13, 2023



Common Thread This Year: 
Relationships Matter

● Lesley Institute for Trauma Sensitivity
● Culturally Responsive Teaching and the Brain
● Family Communication
● Advisory

2



LIFTS Training

▷ All-staff training on Trauma Sensitivity

▷ Grad courses: The Impact of Trauma on 
Learning
○ An Overview: 20 RJG staff members 
○ Classroom and Student Supports: 8 RJG 

staff members 

3



Culturally Responsive Teacher Leaders

4

▷ Book Study

▷ All Staff learning sessions:

○ Dependent v. Independent Learners

○ Levels of Culture



Family Communication

5

▷ Eliminated 5-minute conferences

▷ Increased efforts to make early and regular 

contact with families

▷ Team meetings, other ways to communicate

▷ Additional opportunities in 23-24



Advisory Goals 22-23
● Students will form connections/relationships over two years with 

small groups of students with whom they might not normally 

interact;

● Students will form strong, trusting relationships with an adult;

● Students will be free to be themselves, share their experiences with 

school or other life events in a safe, inclusive environment;

● Students will develop an awareness of self, aligned with the core SEL 

competencies of the district;

● Students will have fun!

6



7

How often is Advisory an enjoyable place to be?

Always 189 25% 7th: 85% favorable

Usually 417 54% 8th: 73% favorable

Rarely 123 16%

Never 39 5%

How would you rate your relationship with your Advisor?

Strong 176 23% 7th: 87% favorable

Good 463 60% 8th: 80% favorable

Strained 52 7%

No relationship 76 10%

How many adults at school can you identify as people you'd trust with a problem or 
concern?

More than one 416 54% 7th: 58% favorable*

One 198 26% 8th: 50% favorable*

I don't have one 156 20%

RJ Grey Student Survey Data, December 2022: 771 Student Responses



SEL Themes and Other Topics in 22-23
▷ Belonging

▷ Perseverance

▷ Communication

▷ Empathy

▷ Mindfulness

▷ Changes

▷ Gratitude

▷ Celebration

▷ History and Impact of 
the Swastika

▷ Use of technology and 
AirDrop

8



Advisory Changes for 23-24

▷ 2 sessions/week, 20 minutes each
▷ Continued school-wide topics for discussion
▷ 7th graders mostly loop with same group into 8th
▷ Slightly fewer groups to allow for more sub coverage 

and oversight
▷ Continued focus on relationships, belonging, and fun

9



Response to Incidents of Bias

▷ Collaborative meeting with Congregation Beth Elohim

▷ Studying how to implement A World of Difference 

program from the Anti-Defamation League (23-24)

▷ Response to affected students and student groups

10



Student Learning 

▷ Math-focused student learning goal as part of School 

Improvement Plan

▷ Shift in approach in Math Explorations class

▷ Continued use of staffing model with teams connected 

to Compass program

11



12

Enormous 
Thanks to our 

Dedicated Staff



“
Questions or Comments

13



 Acton-Boxborough Regional School Committee 
 Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

 MEETING DATE  4-13-2023  AGENDA ITEM NUMBER  3.b 

 AGENDA ITEM TITLE  Guests & Presentations 

 PRESENTER(S)  Joanie Dean, ABRHS Principal 

 SUMMARY OF TOPIC  ABRHS Update 

 WHAT ACTION (if any) DO YOU WISH SCHOOL COMMITTEE TO TAKE? 

 X  No action requested - this is a short update or presentation of information 

 Request input and questions from the School Committee, but no vote required 

 Request formal action with a specific vote: 

 If formal action is requested, is this item being presented: 

 for the first time, with a request that the School Committee vote at a subsequent meeting or 

 with the request that the School Committee take action immediately 

 If formal action is requested, include a suggested motion or contact Julie LaLumiere. 

 APPROX AGENDA TIME  30 mins. 

 FOLLOW-UP 

 ATTACHMENTS  Memo from Peter Light (with links), 
 SC Policy IGD, HS Presentation Slides, 
 Family survey responses by theme, 
 Copy of Family Survey Responses (unredacted), 

 To develop engaged, well-balanced learners through collaborative, caring relationships. 
 WELLNESS  •  EQUITY  •  ENGAGEMENT 



Acton-Boxborough Regional School District
15 Charter Road Acton, MA 01720

978-264-4700
www.abschools.org

Peter J. Light

Superintendent of Schools

To: Acton Boxborough Regional School Committee

From: Peter Light, Superintendent of Schools

Date: April 7, 2023

RE: High School Course Leveling Plan Update

As part of the high school update at your meeting on April 13th, Principal Joanie Dean will present a summary

of work the high school has completed to date regarding its course leveling structure. Below is a discussion of

background information that I hope will be helpful to understanding the presentation in context of the district

strategy and steps moving forward. Ms. Dean will speak more specifically to the substance of the proposal and

process to date.

Background and Alignment with District Strategy

In 2021, the Acton-Boxborough Regional School Committee adopted a district strategy focused on four main

strategic objectives:

1. Engaged Learning

2. Inclusive Practices

3. Equitable Opportunities and Outcomes

4. Social Emotional Learning

Contained within the overarching objectives were two initiatives that led the high school to consider its current

course leveling structure:

1.3 Implement instructional, assessment, grading, and course leveling practices aligned with the

District’s unified vision in order to promote increased cognitive, behavioral, and emotional engagement

for students.

3.4 Identify and implement practices that result in more equitable representation of students in

advanced coursework.

Last year, I met with the high school leadership team including administrators and department leaders. I asked

them to develop a multi-year plan aligned with the above strategic initiatives.

Over the course of this school year, a team of administrators, all department leaders, teachers from each

department, and counselors met to study the course leveling structure, its current impact on students, and

develop a multi-year plan aligned with the district’s strategy. The team looked at quantitative data on student

enrollment patterns in course levels, student grades, and the opportunities afforded to students throughout

To develop engaged, well-balanced learners through collaborative, caring relationships.

WELLNESS ● EQUITY ● ENGAGEMENT

http://www.abschools.org
https://www.abschools.org/district/district_strategy__2020-2026_


their time at the high school. They also reviewed qualitative data that had been gathered from graduate

surveys over multiple years regarding their experiences and the academic climate and culture of the school.

The high school course leveling leadership team has worked with faculty throughout the year to gather

feedback about aspects of its current proposal. The group has presented in multiple venues with both students

and families in order to gather additional feedback about the proposal. The family presentation was recorded

and sent to all families district-wide with an opportunity to provide input via a linked survey.

The high school is continuing to analyze data from the survey and is planning to conduct another survey of

faculty this spring. Analysis of the data collected from the surveys will inform the next steps in the process.

Timeline and Process for Consideration of Final Approval:

A decision around the long-term proposal should take place by December 1, 2023 in order for the school to

develop and publish its next program of studies. The school committee has an existing Policy IGD that outlines

how decisions around curricular changes are made. The policy delegates final approval of changes to the

Superintendent of Schools with the stipulation that “The Superintendent shall inform the School Committee of

new programs or courses when they constitute an extensive alteration in curriculum, instructional content,

and/or approach.”

Based on current policy, it is my intention that the high school will continue to study the issue throughout the

summer and fall. I anticipate that this work will include additional staff, student and family outreach and

feedback. I also anticipate a fall school committee update on this work to occur mid- fall of 2023. I have asked

Principal Dean to submit a final proposal and recommendation to me by November 1, 2023 in order to then

make a final decision.

It is important to know early if the school committee wishes to deviate from this policy on this subject as this

would impact the process the school follows in developing its final proposal.

Attachments:

School Committee Policy IGD - ADOPTION OF NEW PROGRAMS AND COURSES OF STUDY

Family Survey Responses by Theme

Copy of Family Survey Responses (unredacted)

Recording of Family Course Level Presentation

Slides from HS Community Presentation

To develop engaged, well-balanced learners through collaborative, caring relationships.
WELLNESS • EQUITY • ENGAGEMENT

https://z2policy.ctspublish.com/masc/browse/actonset/acton/IGD
https://drive.google.com/file/d/12FDow_5K4S8TumsISRuBOhAhD9ccsPDZ/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1L4MGS7UmEoB0yk1bRPUvKXe3UlywQoKr/view?usp=share_link
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=whFQ75Qp_VU
https://drive.google.com/file/d/13HAZ_mJ_FxS8o-lzjgM-love0AtOU14N/view?usp=share_link




ABRHS

School Update

April 13, 2023



2022 - 2023 Year in Review

● Community Involvement

● Advisory

● Course Leveling



Community Involvement

Promoting a respectful and inclusive community

➢ School and Community Events

➢ Culturally Responsive Practices

➢ Teacher Leadership



Advisory

Goal: To create a cohesive community that encourages 

students to connect with peers and staff. 

● Connections and Engagement

● Relevant School-wide and Student-focused Conversations 

● Overall Positive Student and Teacher Feedback

● Looking Ahead to Next Year: Similar Format and Structure



Course Levels Overview

● ABRHS Course Level Journey to Date

● Educational Landscape

● Evolving Plan for the Future



Senior Survey Feedback
The competition academically is toxic. You feel shamed if you take anything but AP or 
honors classes, and honestly I have felt embarrassed for taking CP classes. 

-Senior, Class of 2021

The stark difference between the communities of students in higher levels and the 
students in lower levels is obvious. There are whole groups in the school that don't 
know one another exist because they are so separated academically that they have 
completely different social groups. -Senior, Class of 2018

I would say that I have felt excluded by other students because of the classes I take. 
For example, students in all/mostly Honors classes don’t tend to befriend students in 
all/mostly AE or CP classes.  -Senior, Class of 2022



Demographic Data - Fall 2022

Demographic Data

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/131Bke4ZdQHSZrCOhHR3S3-MysYAFh5RPer8ALw4nESI/edit?usp=sharing


Goalsoalsls

Goal 1: 
Students will have 
increased access, 
opportunities, and choice to 
study advanced level 
coursework.

Goal 2: 
Students will have access 
to a broader range of 
learning and social 
interactions that will better 
prepare them for today’s 
world.



Four-year Proposed Plan
9th grade 10th grade 11th grade 12th grade

Science
By ‘23-24

Environmental Sci
Environmental Sci H
Environmental Sci AP

Biology
Biology H
Biology AP

Chemistry 
Chemistry H
Chemistry AP

Physics
Physics H
Physics AP

Social 
Studies
By ‘25-26

World History
World History H

US History I
US History I H

US History II
US History II AP

Psychology
Psychology AP

English
By ‘24-25

English I
English I H

English II
English II H

English III
English III H

English IV
English IV AP

French & 
Spanish*
By ‘24-25

Intermediate I Intermediate II
Intermediate II H

Intermediate III
Intermediate III H

Lang.& Culture *
Lang.& Culture AP

Chinese* 
& Latin**
By ‘24-25

Novice I Intermediate I Intermediate II **
Intermediate II H *

Intermediate III*
Int. III H* or Lit.**

Grade 8-10 Grade 9-11 Grade 10-12 Grade 11-12 Grade 12

Math
By ‘26-27

Foundations
Algebra I

Geometry
Geometry H

Alg II Part I / II
Algebra II
Algebra II H    

PreCalculus
PreCalculus H/AP

Calculus
AB Calculus AP
BC Calculus AP

Mobility between 
all levels will be 
more likely from 
year to year. 

Possible exceptions: 
● Math 

Foundations 
● Algebra II Part 1 

& Part 2
● Precalculus

Four-year Proposed Plan



                               2023-2024 Courses

Grade 8-10 Grade 9-11 Grade 10-12 Grade 11-12 Grade 12

Math Foundations
Alg I Part I / II
Algebra I
Algebra I AE

Geometry CP1
Geometry CP
Geometry AE
Geometry H

Algebra II CP1
Algebra II CP
Algebra II AE
Algebra II H

PreCalculus CP
PreCalculus AE
PreCalculus H

Calculus AE
AB Calculus AP
BC Calculus AP

9th grade 10th grade 11th grade 12th grade

Science Environmental Sci
Environmental Sci H
Environmental Sci AP

Biology
Biology H
Biology AP

Chemistry 
Chemistry H
Chemistry AP

Physics
Physics H
Physics AP

Social 
Studies

World History
World History H

US History I CP
US History I AE
US History I H

US History II CP
US History II AE
US History II AP

Psychology
Psychology AP

English English I
English I H

English II
English II H

English III CP
English III AE
English III H

English IV: topic-based
English IV AP

French & 
Spanish 

Intermediate I Intermediate II
Intermediate II H

Spanish/French IV
Spanish/French IV H

Spanish V AE
Spanish/French V AP

Chinese & 
Latin

Novice I Intermediate I Intermediate II
Chinese Intermediate IIH

Chinese IV
Chinese IV H
Latin Literature H

Traditional Levels

CP1 - College 
Prep Level 1

CP - College Prep

AE - Accelerated 
Enriched

AP/H - Advanced 
Placement or 
Honors

Future Example:
World History

World History H 
(Honors)



Support for Teachers
Professional Learning for Instructional Practices

● Specific Needs Identified by Staff 

● Scaffolding, Differentiation, Choice, Reflection, Questioning

● District, Outside, and Peer School Professional Learning & Collaboration

Peer to Peer Learning

● November PL Day, Faculty and Dept. Meetings, and Early Release Days

● Peer Coaching, Focus Groups, and Working Groups

Ongoing Evaluation and Assessment of Plan to inform Future Work

● Teacher, Student and Community Surveys

● Performance Data



Key Themes from Community Survey 

● There is concern that there will be reduced choice and increased stress.

● Classes will be taught to the middle/low.

● There will be less gatekeeping for courses.

● More students will interact with different/diverse peer groups

● There will be increased mobility and flexibility and less tracking.



Common Community Questions/Concerns

● Will student needs be met? Will there be enough support for students? 

● Teacher exhaustion/workload

● Increased student stress and mental health

● Will teaching practices evolve for this model?

● What are the college implications of this new system?

● Will student engagement improve?



Key Comments from Student Survey 
165 total Respondents (out of 1232 students in grades 9-11)

I think that having two course levels increases the interaction between students from different backgrounds. Since there 
are only two options instead of three, more people who were previously in different levels will now meet in classes, which 
will lead to students learning about each other's cultures. Having diversity in each classroom is important because it is 
more reflective of society, so it is important to have at the high school.
 - Student Grade 11

Allows students greater ease to get between different levels in order to make their class easier and harder. 
Helps change the mindset of various groups of students to explore new philosophies about learning (ex. enthusiastic 
learning enters a class with an unenthusiastic learner and brings up class morale). 
- Student Grade 10

It provides the possibility for people who would be in CP or CP 1 level classes to do higher level work, and possible join 
Honors level classes. It also provides a more supportive environment in my experience with my current English class. 
- Student Grade 9

I worry that because AE is taken away there is no longer a middle ground that was used to support students who fit in 
between CP and H. AE, as described by teachers, is an honors class with less workload. Will there be extra support given 
to AE students in honors classes and CP students in potentially more difficult classes? - Student Grade 11



Common Student Questions/Concerns

Will honors and AP courses be changing their structure to make them more 
accessible?

What supports will there be for students who would have been in CP?

Would there be the same number of unleveled classes as there are AE and 
CP classes, would the total number of Honors classes increase or would the 
total number of classes for a course decrease?

Will, by losing the middle level of AE student feel pressured to choose 
Honors?



Overall Notes

● Common Misconception: “High” and “Low” class

● Examples of Scaffolding

● Heterogeneous Class Performance Data

● Student and Teacher Feedback to Date



Additional Resources

● Course Leveling/Tracking Research

● High School Course Levels FAQ (Frequently Asked Questions)

● Community Survey Themes

● Student Survey Themes

https://drive.google.com/file/d/16K5LVzfSVDhKGMxHmwvGXEWi3PYUdSRx/view?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1d4GZSchr1gYb7sDEUNZ6L8zVpSL1Co_-Mqj6xXG-ql4/edit?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1sLPjEaDLgU9Z8T5TiUbEbGtHdtASfpJB/view?usp=sharing


Questions or Comments



Community Forum Survey Themes

Stars = not an overarching Theme or repeated comment, but an important point

Thoughts about Course Leveling Plan ● It was well presented, inclusive, makes sense, looks at well-being of students, good for
freshmen, less stress

● Will slow down advanced students
● Hurt lowest achievers
● Reduces choice
● Increases stress
● Concerned
● Prerequisites prevented movement
● Curriculums need to change for this to be successful
● Teaching to the middle / low
● *Responsive to student feedback
● *Branching in later grades is supportive
● *Unclear how this addresses equity in upper level classes

What opportunities do you see? ● More student development
● More student interaction with different/diverse peer groups
● Less gatekeeping
● Students won’t be told to “drop” levels
● Varied teaching methods
● Focus on the whole child
● Move movement/flexibility/ mobility/less rigidity & tracking
● Less stigma & shame
● Options to challenge oneself and take H or AP
● Less stress
● Upward movement in later grades

What concerns do you have? ● Less challenging curriculum, teaching to the middle
● Students not getting the support they may need
● Less student engagement
● Need for more data on this change
● Large Honors level classes
● More stress and pressure to take upper level classes, More pressure to decide

between H and not H
● Teachers needing PD
● *Early grades not offering more challenge than jr. high
● Grade 8 to grade 9 transition and jr high understanding recommendations
● Loss of personalized levels



What should we watch carefully? ● Will this address the issues mentioned?
● Are students’ needs being met?
● Teacher exhaustion/workload
● Student stress and mental health
● Will there be increased student need for support?
● Teaching practices/ rigor
● How this affects colleges
● Student engagement

What are your thoughts on the proposed GPA? ● Clarity on school profile
● Consistency between depts

Additional thoughts? ● Goals made sense/ Thank you
● Are students able to make level choice decisions at this age?
● Where does the time and resources to train staff come from? Teacher training?
● Need to watch class sizes
● Ask for input before and not once a decision has been made
● Work should be done with the JHS and elementary as well to support this
● Students with IEPs and 504s deserve to have this access to Honors and AP classes

as well.

Quotes:

Line 28: Focus on the whole child/student. In an ideal world this would mean more chances for assistance and enrichment as needed rather than being tracked for a whole hs
career.

Line 33: My daughter has a learning disability. She won’t be shamed or pressured to take classes that are too advanced, just be case her friends are doing it.

Line 65: This plan could provide a chance for a wider variety of kids to be in class together than what would be possible with more levels. This could help bring new perspectives into
class discussions as it could be a more diverse group.

Line 68: Less challenging for a student to stretch, more access to challenging workload

Line 76: I watched the video of the 3/7 presentation. In my view, AB still has a marketing problem, though I'm not sure this was avoidable given the local demographics and
entrenched belief that more levels result in a superior educational experience for students. It's a new day. People, generally, don't believe more students are capable of successfully
completing more rigorous coursework even thought it's been proven that they can, and they don't understand how leveling often leads to tracking which can have lifelong
consequences. Good luck with this initiative! I look forward to seeing how it evolves in the coming years.

Line 81: Less decision and stress about which level their in, more engagement with diverse peers



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/7/2023 19:54:12 Very thought, very well presented
Believe this plan helps develop my 
student. None

The 2 goals are 
fundamentally different,  
while both makes sense.  
Balancing the goals needs to 
be watched carefully.  Good 
communication will be 
needed.

Wpga is good and 
addresses the problems 
with gpa.

The level of prep in this showed.  The 2 goals makes a lot 
of sense.  

3/7/2023 19:55:05

Is one of the goals for this to reduce academic pressure 
on kids? Is the goal to address the stress and mental 
health concerns seen with current and past ABRHS 
students?

My student is not on track for AP 
calculus, yet his math skills are very 
strong. I think this will give him a chance 
to take AP calculus if he goes for it.

I am concerned that there may be 
some confirmation bias in how the 
current changes are viewed as a 
success. I have plenty of suggestions 
for how to combat this, but this forum 
is not a great place to discus the 
details.    
I am concerned that this could water 
down or not challenge some of the 
top students.

I am not convinced that this 
will address the "tracks" that 
the kids feel they are stuck 
in. 

I think there is a delicate balance of maintaining high 
standards while encouraging CP1 and CP students to level-
up.  

I am concerned that without a map/chart/path for getting to 
advanced courses, many students won't know how to level-
up to the (new) honors level.  I also think students need to 
be able to see the path to level-down or get into a class 
where they can be successful. The ability to see that 
students are too stressed or need more support (long) 
before students' mental health takes a hit.

3/7/2023 20:03:21

I don't think removing options or courses is generally a 
good idea.  Ideally, all kids in a class would get individual 
instruction. That might look more like having more levels, 
or having all kids that are at the same level or academic 
capability. With students who have lesser knowledge or 
preparation in the room with students with more 
preparation, that will only slow down the advanced 
students. 

maybe this will help students feel like 
there is more social interaction between 
kids. That sounds like a big experiment. 
While some may interact more, I don't 
see the curriculum change as teh way 
to address this issue 

3/7/2023 22:10:24

Having 2 levels for some depts may make sense but not 
for all. Specifically for math there are students who have 
large gaps from elementary school and they need a class 
to fill their gaps before they can get into the mainstream 
program 

I can see the advantage of more access 
to try a higher level class but I think 
making it too open if a bad idea . Kids 
and parents  don’t always make good 
decisions about how much work they 
can realistically handle or will actually 
handle . 

Realistically with two levels , teachers 
will teach to the middle. To make 
things look good , I am concerned 
that teachers will give easier tests or 
use things for assessment that aren’t 
student specific like the social studies 
dept head was mentioning about 
grading group discussions which was 
quite concerning as there’s little 
accountability if that’s done. Or they 
will give students good grades for just 
handing in their work, not for 
knowledge.  Kids wouldn’t then 
necessarily  have strong 
backgrounds in subject areas 
regardless of getting good grades in 
top levels and this will affect what 
college majors they can handle 
especially if they go to a competitive 
college.  Who cares if they get in, if 
they can’t do the work when they get 
there 

Watch AP scores vs grades 
given in class.   If many 
students do well in an AP 
class but not on the AP test 
then the standards In that 
class are clearly to low. Also, 
if students who are weaker 
do well in class but poorly on 
MCAS, clearly the standards 
being used to assess are too 
low, 

Whether it’s reasonable 
depends how much 
more difficult one level is 
than the other.  That has 
to be consistent between 
teachers in all 
departments 

You really can’t let kids and parents  decide on their own 
levels without putting a number of students in high level 
classes who don’t have the background  for them or who 
just “want to be in a higher level class” but don’t have the 
time to do the additional work or who just want to be in a 
higher level but don’t want to do more work . This is unfair 
to the students who are properly prepared for the higher 
level or who are seeking a stronger academic experience if 
the teacher is accommodating the kids who really shouldn’t 
be there vs teaching a rigorous course . It’s also going to 
cause stress for the misplaced kids with pushy parents . 
What’s the guideline for enrollment in the two levels? 
50/50? 70/30? 30/70? There needs to be some process  
that students need to follow to get into a level they weren’t 
recommended for. And teachers have to have a clear 
expectation for what the level of the top level class should 
be and not “ dumb down” to accommodate the kids who 
took the class, to use a phrase someone  used tonight . 

3/7/2023 22:22:50

It is a positve change that there is no 
longer such tight gatekeeping for who is 
allowed to attempt an advanced course.  
Sometimes students without as much 
background, but with sufficient 
motivation, can thrive.  Of course, there 
needs to be a way for the student to 
gracefully move down a level if, within 
the first few weeks of the class, the 
student finds the overall workload too 
overwhelming.

In the presentation you stated that 
you "want to have opportunities for all 
students to stretch".  However, the 
opportunities for students to "stretch" 
in math are more limited than they 
used to be in the district.  Formerlly, 
for may years, ABRSD had the 
"skippy" program in math which 
permitted some students to take 
Algebra I in grade 7,  Geometry H in 
grade 8, so as to be ready for Alg II in 
grade 9.  The barriers to entry were 
high, and only a few students were 
allowed in each year.  Rather than 
being eliminated, such a program 
should be opened wider, so that 
many students can opt in to Algebra I 
as seventh graders!  

I always thought it was crazy 
for the students to attempt 
an AP Physics class without 
a prior course in physics.  
And now this course pattern 
has expanded to the other 
sciences.  Is this really a 
good idea?



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/7/2023 22:59:49

Reducing levels does not add opportunity - it reduces 
choices and increases the spectrum to which a teacher 
must teach.

The district could make claims of better 
equity (while actually providing inferior 
instruction to everyone).

I believe that my kids (on IEP's) will 
be poorly served.  ADD kids faster 
speed classes (with less total 
workload than Honors classes).  High 
functioning spectrum kids don't all do 
well with in class choices, varied 
learning speeds, and projects.  
Merging CP and AE will hurt my 
children. They will end up in all 
honors/AP,  needing special ed aids 
there, and with a bigger gulf between 
current CP and H kids.   Teachers 
currently fail to meet the 
accommodations of my 11th grader's 
504 and my 8th grader's IEP.  That 
situation is not going to get better 
with classrooms of more broad 
learning needs.

Are IEP kids at the upper 
end of the spectrum having 
more issues or being bored 
the non-leveled classes?   
Are the traditionally CP kids 
struggling?  Are the already 
overworked teachers 
exhausted?  Are the 
teachers who already 
struggle to deliver IEP 
accommodations missing 
more of those?

It doesn't matter.  The 
key is learning - which 
will be less efficient with 
teachers - who already 
overworked trying to 
differentiate and 
scaffold.

1.  The children will be the ones to suffer for this 
experiment.  There are plenty of unleveled courses 
(electives) that allow student mixing.  For rigorous math and 
science, there is content that needs to be taught.  Yes, 
there is less rote memorization than decades past.  Still, 
students need to learn the difference between endothermic 
and exothermic reactions.  The merging of levels is going to 
make delivering the content at a speed that different 
learners in the new combined classes can absorb much 
harder.   2.  It is outrageous that during the day, you send 
an e-mail telling us 8th teachers carefully considered class 
placements and are well versed in where to place students.  
Then at the evening presentation, it is better to send 8th 
graders to HS unleveled because 8th grade teachers not so 
familiar with the HS should not be sorting them.  You are 
not being consistent.   It is insulting that you don't think the 
parents will hear the message differences.  3. If you want 
more opportunities, just eliminate the pre-req's for switching 
levels.  If someone aces CP let them jump to AP.  Fine.  
Opportunities available - without decreasing choices.  4.  If  
students of color and students on IEP's are missing out on 
higher level classes, offer tutoring sessions, summer 
enrichment, or other programs to help those students level-
up.  Bring in role-model Seniors to speak to 9th graders to 
tell them how they can succeed in higher level classes.    
Perhaps some / many of the students in CP or AE classes 
are there because they need the paces those classes have.   
5.  Where will students who can't handle the new unleveled 
pace go?  Currently failing CP allows for a drop to CP1.  
Losing that option does not seem helpful to students who 
struggle.  Acton is not magically a town full of genius 
students.  Some students need slower pacing - without 
losing free periods to take electives.  How will that work 
anyway?  There are only 7 classes to choose.  Math - 1, 
Math support - 2,  English - 3, English support - 4, Social 
Studies - 5, Social Studies support - 6, Science - 7,  
Science support - oops., Gym - oops, Performing arts 
electives - oops. 

3/7/2023 23:31:46

I think this plan is short sighted and needs to be thought 
through more.It sounds like some kids felt badly about 
not being in the upper classes and instead of getting 
them support and help to get into those levels, you 
decided to lower the levels for all students. So we want 
our children to aim for mediocrity? Little to none

I am concerned that my kid will be in 
albe to find friends at their level who 
want to have deep meaningful 
conversations. I am concerned they 
will be bullied for striving for 
excellence.
I am concerned that they will be 
demotivated and no longer wish to go 
to school.I am concerned that my 
child lose their love of learning and 
become depressed.

How this plan hurts kids 
emotionally I think it is a bad idea

I think the only way to fix this is to provide more challenging 
work for the kids to let them sink their teeth into. We talk 
about grit and stick-to-it-iveness but all this does is teach 
kids to give up. Find a way to let kids learn more and move 
faster through the curriculum. Why does my kid have to be 
bored all the time?



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/8/2023 8:43:49

I am not a proponent of the new leveling plan the HS is 
introducing.  I believe that putting 3 levels of students 
into one classroom will help the "average" kids but will 
hurt the lowest achievers and undermine the progress of 
the highest achievers.  In this age where the school is 
facing budget cuts and staff layoffs to require teachers to 
provide instruction to a very large range of abilities 
without adequate resources is not ideal.   In addition,  the 
practical result  will be that most current AE students will 
look to take more Honors levels classes because of the 
perceived "rigor" for college application purposes and 
that will result in more stress (not less) for a large 
percentage of those students.  This is counterintuitive to 
the wellness initiative that the school tried to implement 
several years back.  

This plan will not open up any further 
opportunities for my child.  He already 
has the option of taking Honors classes 
as do all the rest of the students at AB 
who look to be challenged, apply 
themselves, and made academics a 
priority.

Both of my children could not wait to 
get out of elementary and JH where 
they were in unleveled classrooms. 
They found being in classrooms with 
kids who were distractions and did 
not take academics seriously was 
extremely frustrating.  They enjoyed 
those classrooms discussions and 
especially group work (where they 
didn't have to carry the weight 
anymore) with students who were 
aligned with their commitment to 
school.    My concern is that if the 
focus is now getting everyone past 
the finish line rather than optimizing 
everyone's time my children will 
become frustrated with school. 

Student stress. Chronic 
absenteeism.  Teacher 
retention. 

My 2026 student is at a 
disadvantage with the 
new proposed GPA and 
WGPA scales due in 
part to the fact that there 
less honors courses 
available to him with 
unweighted foreign 
language classes and 
less levels for other 
classes going forward.  
Having gone through the 
college process recently, 
weighted GPA numbers 
were asked for in college 
applications as well as 
merit scholarship 
process.  By placing a 
ceiling on that WGPA 
number it looks like my 
child did not take as 
rigorous of classes as he 
could have during his 
HS years.  The HS 
MUST be very clear on 
its school profile about 
the changes - especially 
for the class of 2026 
which is stuck in the 
middle of this transition!!! 

Going to last night's presentation was touted as an evening 
where the school wanted parents "feedback".    Please 
refrain from marketing these forums as an opportunity for 
parents to be included in the decision making process 
which the term "feedback" suggests.  Rather, the HS needs 
to own the fact that the decision had already been made, 
the plans are already being implemented as class 
registration begins on Friday ,and the HS program of 
studies has already been published to the public.   If the HS 
administration was truly interested in parent "feedback" 
these types of forums would be conducted at a much earlier 
stage in the process and involve key stakeholders (parents 
of children in both CP and AE and Honors classes) in this 
discussion.  

3/8/2023 9:19:54

1.  What are the other area HS ABRHS compares itself 
to in making this huge step? Most recently, the SC has 
stated that we cannot compare ourselves to LS or CC 
anymore, so who are our peer institutions? From those 
other peer schools, who has found success in de-leveling 
its classes for the majority of its students?  

Why is AB rushing to implement its 
plan without gaining full data from 
previous years.  This year the HS 
experimented with English I and 
English H.  Why not wait to see how 
successful (or unsuccessful) those 
English I students were and how 
many will register for English H next 
year before moving to implement this 
move in History next year already.  
You are touting your "success" on 
data from a mere 6 months at this 
point.  

How many kids is this really 
benefiting to access and 
open opportunities to honor 
level classes.  1 student?  
12?  40?  Seems like a very 
large change which impacts 
majority of students to help a 
very small population access 
honor level classes more 
easily. 

While the purported intent is to have high expectations for 
all learners to level up, the current state of the budget and 
cuts in resources suggests that this plan will fail to 
adequately address the needs of all students since there 
will be inadequate support for teachers to accomplish this 
transition successfully.  If there is a plan to adequately 
support teachers with resources, what will the school be 
trading off in exchange?  Cuts in extracurricular funds?  
The HS does not have an unlimited budget, so where will 
the time and resources to support the teachers come from?  

3/8/2023 13:22:35

It looks good in paper. I have a lot of doubt about 
successful implementation. Teachers may teach to the 
slowest or the fastest, instead of meeting individual 
needs. The social structure among students won't 
change.

This plan doesn't impact my student 
who is in the top 3%. They will still take 
all H/AP courses. In fact, we expect the 
H/AP course expectation to be lower 
and more manageable to my student 
because the students who would have 
been in AE may now be in H/AP and the 
teachers will have to slow down/dump 
down to accommodate them. This plan 
will not impact their social interaction 
either. Friends are usually (but not 
always) determined based on interests. 
H/AP students' interest are quite 
different than CP students (math team, 
science project,debate Versus sports, 
art, theater). It was actually silly for the 
school to think that opening up the H/AP 
to more students will make CP/CP1 
students feel more inclusive. 

The teachers will 1) not cover all 
contents due to having to slow down 
to accommodate former AE students 
in H/AP class, and 2) assign large 
amount of busy useless homework to 
slow down the fast/advanced learner. 
These are both bad. Then, I'm so 
afraid former CP1 students will be 
embarrassed in a regular class for 
needing a tutor all the time.

The quantitative 
measurement of MCAS/AP 
should be presented to the 
school committee as a follow 
up. For example, to see the 
result of delevel english 1 
and 2, compare the 
difference in average gr 8 
and 10 ELA MCAS for each 
subgroup from class of 2023, 
2024, 2025, 2026 
(Diffference-in-Differences 
method).  Secondly, watch 
the mental health of the 
former AE students who are 
in H/AP and former CP1 
students who are in regular 
sections. Thirdly, watch the 
amount of homework and 
quizzes. They shouldn't 
increase due to this plan. 
Finally, do another survey 
about friendship as I expect 
that the plan will not change 
the social structure of 
highschoolers. 

It is deceiving. The big 
name colleges will 
eventually know about it. 
That is, H/AP class 
grades won't be seen as 
respectable as before. 
They will eventually 
notice the grade 
inflation.

1) Please allow math acceleration like Lexington. This will 
give an outlet for precocious students who are ready to 
move on to the next math course. Delevel will cause more 
students to feel that the class is too easy. Give them an 
outlet. 2) Ban the use of weekly quiz please. Quiz shouldn't 
be more often than once or twice a month. If all five core 
subjects have weekly quiz, students would have a quiz 
everyday. This is the major cause of mental health problem. 
3) You guys need to report the class sizes and the number 
of sections for each level of each course. Data 
transparency is needed.



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/8/2023 18:03:08
I think it's terrific -- both more inclusive and offering more 
challenging options.

Being in class with more diverse 
students, honors or ap classes if she 
wants them.

the possibility of the needs of each 
student not being met in the 
heterogenous classes.

Making sure no one is 
slipping through the cracks none really

Thank you for designing a plan that will minimize 
unnecessary tracking, and maximize the inclusion of all 
students at ABRHS. I know a lot of parents seem against it, 
but I think it's terrific, pedagogically sound, and data-
informed. I wish the school I teach out would do this too.

3/9/2023 12:57:56
Given how students feel about being tracked/bucketed, it 
makes sense

My child won't be told to drop a level as 
often.

My child might struggle to keep up 
with other students and the teacher 
may lack the skillset to help. 
Potentially large Honors level classes 
which will be very difficult for students 
choosing to "stretch."

Lower grades in unleveled 
courses for students who 
would have selected 
CP/CP1 levels. Does this 
improve mental health and 
feelings of exclusion. For 
students who would have 
taken AE, is honors too 
much of a stretch?

It's highly favorable to 
Class of 2027 and later 
especially when you look 
at Lexington HS GPA 
scales.

It's critical to focus on scaffolding with teachers. Some at 
AB DO NOT have this skillset or mindset. We experienced 
this first hand in Bio H when the teacher made them shift to 
EnviSci after a couple weeks despite my child being an 
honor roll/high honor roll student.

3/10/2023 7:42:43

Overall, I think we must do this. Social and emotional 
wellbeing enables academic excellence, and students 
and families should not find high school miserable (which 
seems often the case).

I have a student with a rather lengthy 
IEP who takes a few inclusion classes 
per year, but has been in a substantially 
separate classroom for most of his 
junior high and high school classes. I 
am comfortable with trying this out for 
social studies and excited about 
continuing with science, which allow my 
student to push his boundaries and 
achieve more than anyone expects of 
him.  I appreciate that he has been 
supported to try out World Languages 
and look forward to that continuing as 
well.

I know my student needs a lot of 
support for social interactions, 
scaffolding to help him organize 
information and thoughts, and 
communication to support planning / 
executive function. I wonder what 
that will look like in classes that are 
larger in size, and how teachers will 
view these changes.

The quality of student work. I 
wonder if maintaining a 
portfolio of best 
accomplishments might help 
us understand student 
achievement? Also, teacher 
flexibility - not everyone has 
embraced UDL, and there 
are courses that remain 
inaccessible to different 
learners because teachers 
are enamored with a way of 
accessing information or 
assessing student 
performance. And the social 
aspect - this will help, but if 
it's cool to be mean, we need 
to accompany these 
changes with evaluating how 
students see themselves 
and others.

Having learned that 
colleges just recalculate 
them anyway, it would 
be useful to make sure 
our seniors better 
understand how colleges 
will see them. A high AB 
GPA isn't helpful if it 
makes us feel good for a 
few years, and then 
reality intrudes when it's 
time to apply to college.

This is important, but we need student, teacher, and family 
support to make it work.  From a financial standpoint, we 
also need a way to model the personnel costs involved. 
Teachers need the time to prep for a more diverse student 
group, shift their lesson plans and teaching materials, and 
communicate / collaborate with families. That means more 
planning periods, and I'm not sure how to accomplish that 
and keep class sizes / teacher workload manageable 
without adding staff...which bring us back to the budget that 
is already a topic of community concern. 

Thanks to the team that is working on this - much 
appreciated!

3/10/2023 8:11:05

This is important, but we need student, teacher, and family 
support to make it work.  From a financial standpoint, we 
also need a way to model the personnel costs involved. 
Teachers need the time to prep for a more diverse student 
group, shift their lesson plans and teaching materials, and 
communicate / collaborate with families. That means more 
planning periods, and I'm not sure how to accomplish that 
and keep class sizes / teacher workload manageable 
without adding staff...which bring us back to the budget that 
is already a topic of community concern. 

Thanks to the team that is working on this - much 
appreciated!  Happy to answer questions if desired (Tori 
Campbell, vjhcampbell@gmail.com)



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/11/2023 7:33:46

I believe it makes sense for the freshman as they are 
going from no levels. So to divide them into three levels 
is kind of difficult. But after the freshman year teacher 
should get a feel for where the students belong in 
students should get that more targeted instruction.

Honestly, my student would’ve been 
someone who takes AE classes and 
some honors classes. And I do not see 
any opportunities for him with this plan. 
There is only downside for him.

For my student in particular, I am 
concerned that he will now be in 
classes with a much wider range of 
abilities, and assuming he is in the 
signature class he will be in the upper 
end of that group. I’m concerned that 
the teacher will have to spend more 
time focusing on the lower end of the 
group, and my son will not get 
appropriately challenged. 

As a person who was OK in 
math, I really can’t imagine 
being in the same room as 
the people who are really 
good in math, I would have 
felt uncomfortable and 
would’ve been lost. Similarly, 
if I was in the room with 
people who were really 
struggling, I assumed they 
would have felt 
uncomfortable and lost. And 
I would not have learned as 
much. I’m very concerned 
with this model for 
mathematics . We were told 
that the signature course 
would be most similar to the 
AE course. I imagine it will 
not remain that way, and will 
get easier. For students that 
would’ve been in the 80 
course they will be learning 
less.

I don’t understand why 
students earning an A. 
Do not get a 5.0. That 
really doesn’t make any 
sense to me. Also, as a 
parent of an eighth 
grader, my son is being 
recommended for an AA 
math class and that is 
not on your chart.

I can appreciate the desire to reach some underserved 
communities. But it seems like there are better ways to do 
that. Also, the students are individual people, so instead of 
doing a blanket one-size-fits-all approach. Maybe 
somebody should intervene and talk to the specific students 
and help them to reach their full potential.

I comment her and the principal both mentioned smaller 
class sizes and additional staff. But, it doesn’t seem like 
that is definitely happening… Just that everybody would like 
that. If that is not happening, then you should not move 
forward. As many schools in the area are looking at this, 
according to the principal, can’t we slow down? And get 
learning from other districts. No need for our kids to be the 
Guinea pigs.

3/11/2023 7:41:57

I think we should leave the levels as is. If you want to get 
rid of CP1 and believe those students can thrive in a CP 
class then that seems reasonable. But it’s a big jump to 
put them into an AE class (supposedly the signature 
class is AE?). Also, why is there still honors? If the 
district really believed this was best for students then 
why would they leave honors classes…why not just put 
all the kids together.

An opportunity to be more stressed out 
and overwhelmed. My daughter is an 
upper middle level student. She is now 
being recommended for honors classes 
except math. She would have had a 
healthier mix of AE and H. Now with 
more H classes she will likely be 
stressed out and overwhelmed.

She will push herself to be in H 
because there are only 2 levels. 

Students stress. How the 
students who would have 
been in CP are feeling and 
achieving. If the former AE 
students are still getting the 
same level of work. 

It seems like there 
should still be a middle 
column. Also. Where I 
grew up they didn’t do 
A+. Having A+ just 
makes kids more 
stressed and 
competitive. AB maybe 
likes this competition but 
it’s not healthy. And 
shame on the 
administration for putting 
forth a GPA scale that 
pushes this.

It felt really disingenuous to be there when it seems the 
plan had already been made. Most parents did not know 
what was happening next year, and next year sophomores 
also have choices being taken away from them. Why don’t 
you slow down, if you’re in it for the long-haul, make one 
change, wait a few years, make another change… Slow 
down give students families and teachers a chance to catch 
up.

3/12/2023 15:01:34 I feel quite concerned overall. 

Students will earlier may have taken 
AE level will now feel compelled to 
take Honors and this will only add 
more pressure and stress. 

This is not clear to me 
what the implications in 
this regard are.



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/13/2023 12:03:34
 am personally strongly against the AB schools reducing 
the course levels, which is not good for the students.

I do not see opportunities in this plan for 
my kids. 

The plan will hurt many students. 
Here are the reasons.
1. If there are less levels, who will the 
teachers focus on? As a professor 
and teacher, I know how difficult it is 
to teach a course with students at 
different levels. If I teach fast, some 
students can not catch up. If I teach 
slowly, some students do not learn 
enough. This will be the challenge 
the teachers will face. 

2. Reducing levels will discourage 
some students to be the best of 
themselves. It is natural that some 
students do better than others in the 
class. If the students do not learn 
much in the class, what should they 
do at school? just for social, 
networking, etc? My younger son 
basically does not learn anything in 
his math class since his level is so 
much above what the teacher is 
teaching. This is partly because there 
are no levels in 7th math class.

3. The following is the goal from your 
presentation. 
This has been in an effort to offer 
more advanced course opportunities 
and provide a broader range of 
learning and social interactions for all 
of our students. 
More levels should allow the goal, 
instead of less levels. AB school 
should serve all the students, not a 
particular group. If a student can 
achieve more, we should allow them 
to move faster. If it takes time for a 
student to learn the same amount of 
knowledge, the school should provide 
extra resources. there should be options for 

high achieving students.

I hope that AB school can reconsider the proposal. Instead 
of less levels, the school should allow students to take 
more flexible courses. For example, if a student in 7th 
grade can take 9th grade level math class, he/she should 
be allowed to do so.

Remember that our students will need to compete with the 
world. They have to be the best of themselves in order to 
succeed. As a school, we should give them flexibility. Less 
levels will certainly limit the flexibility.

3/13/2023 13:33:19 I am very much against it. 
I think it will have a negative impact on 
my children. 

It makes it impossible to teach to 
students who are at different levels.  
Too fast for some kids and not fast 
enough for others. 

Is the school offering 
programs of study to all 
levels. 

Not constructive.  Trying 
to obfuscate the 
excellence of some 
students. 

Poor decision and in time my prediction is you will revert 
back to the way it has been, which incidentally has worked 
well broadly for students.  

3/13/2023 13:36:43
I am not 100% sure this will achieve the desired outcome 
and may further polarize the community. 

My 8th grader is receiving mixed 
messaging from her current teachers 
and where she should be. Indicating 
that a the Honors/AP classes will not 
have more scaffolding and her 89% 
average means she should not stretch 
as is recommended in the presentation. 

The AP/Honors teachers do not have 
the capacity to introduce scaffolding 
for stretch students and will teach to 
the top half of the class creating a 
bigger pressure cooker. 

a bifurcation of the education 
community more so than 
there already is. 

I worry about the 
messaging to colleges 
and if it is being 
communicated 
appropriately. 

I would like to see the prerequisite tree diagram for the 
classes offered at the HS. 

3/13/2023 13:39:00 It will be bad for students.

Too many honors classes, too much 
stress.  AE classes are needed for 
mental health. Parent feedback now.

It might look good, but 
won't make kids learn 
faster. Have the teachers really agreed to this?

3/13/2023 13:39:26

I don’t think it will improve the separation between 
students.  While there may be a percentage of students 
who take a more advanced course, I think the biggest 
barrier to this in the past was the grade 
requirements/prerequisite structure, not the number of 
courses offered.  Without so many minim grades in X 
courses, teachers could more freely recommend 
students to higher levels, or students could choose to 
enroll in a more challenging course. 

The varied teaching & evaluation 
methods in the new course models will 
be very beneficial to my student and 
others with similar profiles.  

My concern is that kids who need 
extra help at CP or CP1 will struggle 
and have no opportunity to move to 
an appropriate level.  This can create 
significant anxiety and disconnection 
that will grow over time. 

The number of students 
seeking extra help to try to 
keep up with “leveled up” 
courses.  If these students 
are in over their heads and 
spending significant time 
outside of class time getting 
help or working on 
homework for too long, then 
something needs to change. 

My concern is the 
WGPA for the class of 
2026 because if 
students don’t take 
honors level courses in 
Science or ELA, they will 
have a WGPA that only 
includes Math & History 
which therefore weights 
subjects unequally. 

I hope students don’t feel pushed to take Honors courses 
when they’d prefer to take AE level, causing increased 
stress levels across the student body.  In addition, I am still 
concerned about the science course shift to no 
prerequisites for AP Bio/Chem/Enviro and the impact on 
student success on science APs.  



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/13/2023 13:41:31

This plan will add stress on my 
student. He takes a mix of Honors 
and AE classes. Now, if forced to 
choose between an Honors class and 
an unleveled class, in a class he was 
planning to take AE, he now feels he 
“has” to take the Honors class so that 
he remains competitive academically. 
This is happening right now in 
English II, as he makes course 
selection for his Sophomore year. 

3/13/2023 13:57:49

I believe it supports students.  In particular, it will allow 
for more students to achieve higher levels of learning 
and growth 

The ability to move to more 
challenging/higher level courses after 
9th or 10th grade. Students will need more support.

How many students, in 
particular in groups that have 
lower representation in 
advanced courses, complete 
higher levels in courses. N/A

I am glad that the H.S. is opening up more challenging 
courses and content to more students.

3/13/2023 14:02:26 It is a good idea to encourage students to level up. 
None. My students have been taking 
only AP/H/AE classes. 

My 11th grader reports that a lot of 
students in his AE classes have poor 
work attitudes and that this limits 
peer learning. This problem could get 
worse. My children might feel more 
pressure to take AP/H over AE.

How successful are 
heterogeneous classes 
(those that exist already and 
the ones that are newly 
created).

Colleges will probably 
recalculate any scale 
that pegs the lowest 
WPGA for an A+ at 4.5. 

De-leveling will be most successful if it is paired with small-
group instruction or additional teacher support. Large de-
leveled classes do not work well in my experience.

3/13/2023 14:07:30

This is a bad idea. It will lead to unrecoverable damage 
to Acton Boxborough School District's reputation as an 
Academic heavy weight. 

None. This will hamper learning for all 
kids. Honors curriculum will have to be 
diluted and kids in lower level will have 
a hard time keeping up where the 
curriculum will have to be upgraded to 
account for overall higher level of the 
class. Don't implement this plan Don't do this. 

3/13/2023 14:08:49

With a rising 9th grader, I don't have experience with the 
"old" leveling system - only what I've heard from word of 
mouth. I'm wondering if the Honors classes will get 
easier, harder or stay the same. I wonder if the signature 
classes will look more like AE or CP. Can this be 
answered somewhere?

Focus on the whole child/student. In an 
ideal world this would mean more 
chances for assistance and enrichment 
as needed rather than being tracked for 
a whole hs career.

I worry about the teachers' training, 
experience, and abilities to 
differentiate curriculum to meet the 
needs of all learners. I worry about 
their willingness to look beyond the 
scope and sequence and their 
calendars and teach to the 
individuals in front of them. I hope 
they'll receive ample prof 
development and time with 
colleagues for this work.

Are more kids taking all 
Honors now in an effort to 
not get mixed in with less-
serious students?Are 
teachers differentiating 
instruction as needed due to 
wider range of students in 
their classes? How are 
colleges perceiving AB's new 
system (over time)?

seem ok, but I don't 
have experience with 
this

I hope that work load and opportunities, etc will be more 
consistent from teacher to teacher. In past years the same 
course could be VERY different based on the instructor - 
not fair if the course looks the same on the report card. I'd 
like to see departments look to be more on the same page 
in terms of expectations regarding how standards are met 
and amount of hw given. 

3/13/2023 14:10:28
I do not see how my son will be appropriately challenged 
with your new plan. None

My son is a solid A- student.  Do I 
now push him to Honors classes 
where he may be overwhelmed or 
leave him with the masses where he 
will le bored as he currently is in Math 
8?  

I think you should put more 
thought in now before you 
implement. no opinion

Why do we have seperate classes for the very top level 
students and lump everyone else together into a one size 
fits all classroom?  It has not been clearly explained how 
teachers will 'scaffold' classes so I do not believe it is 
realistic and planned out well enough to begin next year, 
especially with the large class sizes at the High School.

3/13/2023 14:22:07

This plan is taking away options from students, making 
for sub-optimal learning conditions and putting extra 
burden on teachers, who are spread thin as it is

My students will lose from being in 
unleveled classes. They can’t and 
shouldn’t take all Honors classes, and 
what could be the perfect match will 
now turn into either area of struggle - in 
case of a hard class, or into 
unmotivating and boring class.

My students fell perfectly in between 
the levels in certain areas, where CP 
was too easy and boring, and AE 
was a bit too fast and difficult. We 
kept saying that there were not 
enough levels to serve kids better. 
Now, in de-leveled classes no 
category of students will be served 
right, neither strong advanced 
students, nor struggling students still 
working on developing their skills.

The students from CP1 
classes will fall behind, and 
will lose any interest they,‘Ve 
had in learning. AE students 
will likely feel unchallenged 
and bored, and subsequently 
also lose interest. The 
teachers will have to be 
watching over those groups 
carefully, pretty much using 
an individual approach to 
every student.

Very hard to form an 
opinion about it. The 
presentation was very 
vague.  I am concerned 
about the students who 
will be enrolled into the 
unleveled classes in the 
next two years, and how 
their GPA will be 
(negatively) affected. 
Weighted GPA for these 
classes will be depriving 
them of the much 
needed points that they 
could earn in AE and CP 
classes. In the current 
competitive college 
admissions picture, 
those few extra points 
could be a deal breaker.

I wish the district would take a more conservative approach 
to this idea, and would seek the community input before, 
and not after the decision was made. Many people choose 
to live in these towns specifically for the kids to attend a 
great school, and now you making us question our choices. 
I’ve spoken to a few high school parents who seriously 
consider transferring their kids to private schools, or moving 
to another town because of this initiative. It is very easy to 
destroy a good school system. Fixing it back will be much 
harder.



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/13/2023 16:07:13 It’s not a great idea. 

My daughter will be fine. She takes 
predominantly higher level classes.  It’s 
not equitable for students who are not 
strong academically. 

If she takes a lower level(non honors 
or ap class). Teachers will be 
struggling to teach to all the levels in 
one class.  

I believe the kids in the 
middle will be losing the 
most.  They will struggle to 
keep up or just get lost in the 
shuffle. N/a

3/13/2023 16:32:33
It is a good start. There is plenty of evidence that tracking 
creates systemic barriers to success for all.

Less scratching in classes. Reduced 
anxiety and pressure. Less unhealthy 
competition. More of a balanced 
approach between self care and work.

Teachers need after training and 
support if this is going to work.

Supporting marginalized 
groups. Making sure 
changes in teaching 
practices accompany 
structural shifts. A good first step.

There is far to much unhealthy pressure and stress at AB. 
This is not high standards but a competitive system of 
winners and losers. All children can succeed if we believe 
that is a possibility.

3/13/2023 17:01:17
The old way was tro complicated and anxiety inducing.  
This is a much healthier method.

My daughter has a learning disability.  
She won’t be shamed or pressured to 
take classes that are too advanced, just 
be case her friends are doing it.

I’m not concerned.  I’m actually 
relieved.

We should compare the new 
method with AB school 
suicides/ drug overdoses 
and see if the numbers 
improve. It looks fine to me. I’m so glad the crazy leveling issue is being addressed!

3/13/2023 18:21:56 I think it's a bad idea to change so frequently. I didn't see any good for my student. Less choice
More students struggles 
because no more choice. no idea

Should put more source to help student to be better of 
themselves. Not lower the bar.

3/13/2023 18:27:54

I am in favor of the new plan, as long as the teachers 
think it is a good plan. The current system is confusing 
and I question what benefit there is to dividing CP and 
AE. 

The expectations will be more 
straightforward. My daughter takes all H 
courses. However, she takes Algebra 
AE and Nov Span 1 because we moved 
from another state in 8th grade. Her 
grades range from A+ to A-. She seems 
to excel in science, english and history. 
So, she will take AP Bio and H eng, hist 
next year. Non-Honors or AP are 
baseline courses in my experience.
There is no shame in that. But, when 
there are 4-5 levels, a student feels 
lame if they are at the bottom. Plus, all 
students should have access to the 
"baseline" course. Not everyone will 
excel and that is OK.

Some students are more motivated 
than others. So, if there are fewer 
levels there will be more varied 
learners pooled in the regular or 
baseline class. I think this is how 
public schools have been traditionally 
run. Honors and AP courses have 
more motivated learners. So, 
sometimes my child will be paired 
with a less motivated learner. She will 
likely have to compensate for the less 
motivated learner. This situation 
occurred in middle school.  It is likely 
that we will request to move our 
student to honors math if this is 
instituted, which is fine and probably 
appropriate. 

Are the teachers able to get 
through there curriculum as 
planned. Are students falling 
behind. I have no opinion.

I disagree with the quotes at the beginning of the 
presentation. Kids meet each other in and outside of class. 
Sports, electives, band, PE and other electives and 
extracurriculars are great places to meet kids in other 
academic levels. There are so many ways for students to 
expand their social circles if they want to. I am not 
convinced that these changes will change friend circles. 
However, I think promoting more fun social activities, like 
culture week, school dances, table tennis tournaments are 
great. How about a homecoming celebration with floats or 
other fun team-building social opportunities! What about a 
winter formal dance, pep rally etc. These kids need a bit 
more school sanctioned frivolity.

3/13/2023 18:33:30

In support of the idea of taking away such strict levels in 
order to take away stigmas. But I don’t love this plan..
especially taking away AE levels which essentially this 
plan is doing. There’s no way kids leveled as CP1 and 
AE could possibly BOTH get their needs met. No way 
teachers will have enough support to do this!!

Before the presentation I was thinking 
maybe my child would feel less 
pressure of being in certain classes. But 
now I think she’ll feel much more 
pressure in trying to decide between the 
heterogeneous class and Honors/AP 
because I think she falls between AE 
and Honors. Maybe the opportunity to 
work with kids who are at different 
levels than her but I think the negatives 
outweigh this positive. 

Same as above…not getting what 
she needs in a heterogeneous class. 
No real support. Not challenged. Also 
feeling pressure of which class to 
choose…is honors a little less fast, 
more supportive, less work or will 
these stay the same as they always 
have been? I’m concerned she’ll 
have no idea which classes she she 
should be in. I think AE would have 
been perfect for her and now she has 
to choose between Honors—which 
may be too much for her—and 
heterogeneous class, which probably 
won’t be challenging enough or 
worse, she won’t get her the 
appropriate support. I think the 
current 8th graders will suffer the 
most with this new deleveling plan. 
No idea where my child belongs??? 

Support/challenge for kids in 
the heterogeneous classes. 
Unfortunately the incoming 
kids are the Guinea pigs, like 
many pilot programs AB has 
put in place.  Not sure yet 

Please consider this carefully and at least help us parents 
understand it better. Have you studied enough other 
schools who have done this????



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/13/2023 19:11:57

Removing the CP levels may disproportionately affect 
students who are already at a disadvantage, such as 
those who are English language learners or who come 
from low-income backgrounds. These students may 
benefit from a middle ground between regular and 
honors/AP level courses. Increased workload: For 
students who are not yet ready for more advanced 
classes, jumping straight from a CP to regular level 
course may be a significant increase in workload. This 
could lead to burnout or stress, which could negatively 
impact their academic performance and well-being. 
Reduced flexibility: Without the CP level, students may 
feel limited in their ability to customize their schedules 
based on their interests and academic goals. This could 
lead to a less diverse student body in certain classes, 
which may limit opportunities for collaboration and 
discussion. Decreased inclusivity: Removing the CP level 
may send a message that the school values only the 
highest achieving students, which could create a culture 
of exclusivity and competition. This could be 
discouraging for students who may not feel like they fit in 
with the school's academic culture.

Overall, the proposed course leveling 
plan provides students with the 
opportunity to challenge themselves 
academically, explore diverse subject 
areas, and prepare themselves for 
future academic or career pursuits.

Limited options: Removing the CP 
level may limit the course options 
available for students who are not yet 
ready for honors or AP level courses. 
This could make it difficult for some 
students to find a course that fits their 
academic level and interests.

Increased competition: With fewer 
course options available, students 
may find themselves competing with 
their peers for spots in the limited 
number of honors or AP level 
courses. This could create a stressful 
and competitive academic 
environment.

Pressure to perform: Honors and AP 
level courses can be challenging and 
require a significant amount of work 
outside of class. Students who take 
these courses may feel pressure to 
perform at a high level, which could 
negatively impact their mental health 
and well-being.

Burnout: Students who take a heavy 
load of honors and AP level courses 
may experience burnout from the 
increased workload and academic 
pressure. This could lead to 
decreased academic performance or 
even physical or mental health 
issues.

Inequity: Without the CP level, 
students who are not yet ready for 
honors or AP level courses may be 
left behind and may not receive the 
support they need to succeed. This 
could perpetuate existing inequities in 
the education system.

Student mental health and 
well-being: Taking honors 
and AP level courses can be 
stressful for students, 
particularly if they are taking 
multiple courses at once. 
Schools should monitor 
student mental health and 
well-being, particularly if 
there are signs of increased 
stress or burnout.  Equity 
and access: Schools should 
monitor whether the removal 
of the CP level leads to any 
equity issues, particularly for 
students who may not be 
ready for honors or AP level 
courses. It will be important 
to ensure that all students 
have access to the courses 
and support they need to 
succeed.

Overall, the proposed 
GPA and WPGA scales 
have the potential to 
better reflect student 
achievement and 
incentivize academic 
rigor, but it will be 
important to carefully 
monitor their 
implementation and 
impact over time.

It's important to ensure that all students have access to 
appropriate levels of instruction and support. While 
removing the CP level may help to reduce stigma and 
inequities, it's important to ensure that students who would 
have previously taken CP-level courses are still able to 
access appropriate levels of instruction and support. This 
may require additional resources, such as smaller class 
sizes, more individualized instruction, or additional support 
services.
It's also important to recognize that CP-level classes can 
play an important role in helping students build foundational 
skills and knowledge, and can provide a valuable middle 
ground between regular and honors-level courses. 
Removing these classes may limit opportunities for 
students who may benefit from this middle ground, and may 
make it more difficult for students to find an appropriate 
level of challenge and support.

3/13/2023 19:26:02

I disagree with the plan in general.  While I do think that 
kids shouldn't be tracked for math based on a test in 6th 
grade, the results of which determine whether or not they 
get to calculus, there is already ample opportunity for 
movement among our current system of levels, and it's 
simple:  if you do well enough in a class, it demonstrates 
your interest in and likelihood of success in a higher 
level.  If we want more students to be able to achieve at 
a higher level in high school, perhaps we need to 
reinforce supports and expectations at the the 
elementary and junior high levels.  However, moves like 
cutting classroom assistants is counter to this idea.  Most 
high schools offer only two levels of classes, like ABRHS 
seems to be moving;  however, when for years we have 
been recognized as a top school in the 
area/state/country, why are we doing what everyone else 
is doing?  Why aren't they doing what we've been doing?  
My older kids had no problem being accepted into 
excellent colleges, and excelling while there, taking a mix 
of levels of classes at AB, and never more than 2 honors 
level at any one time.  I realize college admissions is 
increasingly competitive but I don't think that colleges 
aren't admitting our students because they don't 
understand what the AE level of classes means.  I

It is only confusing at this point, with 
only one year left.  

It seems that the kids don't 
understand what is happening with 
the levels, and we just signed up for 
classes. When choosing science: 
"Honors physics, because it's like AE 
is now."  While I'm not sure that's 
true, that's the plan for now.  It seems 
unfair for a student, in the fall of their 
senior year, to have to be in such 
untested, unchartered territory.  It is 
not going to be fun to have my senior 
start honors physics, do badly, have 
to drop down, have to switch around 
their schedule because we don't 
know how things are going to be.  
There have been SO many changes 
in the HS in recent years, from the 
schedule, to the start times, to 
advisory changing every year, etc.  
For my child, who will be a senior 
next year:  Add on the covid years of 
remote, to hybrid, to full time, to back 
home, to back at school, to masks, to 
no masks, to please wear masks, etc.  
More experimentation and more 
confusion does not feel right at this 
time.

I think we should expect 
frustration from teachers and 
students.  It's asking a lot of 
a HS teacher to cover so 
much material in an 
elementary mode of all 
abilities in one room.  I think 
students might be frustrated 
if not everyone in the class 
takes the work as seriously, 
as often happens in the 
lower levels of classes now.

There should absolutely 
be a level for F, because 
as it is written now, it 
seems that teachers are 
not allowed to fail any 
student.

I understand the intentions for this initiative are good, but I 
am not in support of this proposal.  I believe there are better 
ways to fix the issues reflected in the student quotes in the 
beginning of this presentation.  They are social issues, and 
issues having to do with unrealistic expectations.  But those 
are issues that won't be fixed with providing fewer 
academic choices and expecting teachers to do more to 
meet a wider variety of student needs in a single class.



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/13/2023 19:35:53

I think it is a move in the right direction. I do wonder why 
sciences have the distinction of AE and honors. I am 
overall wondering why AB continues to place more value 
and rigor on STEM.

I see the decreased stigma of being 
able to calibrate in the sciences.

I do not think there is enough 
opportunity for the humanities, 
specifically the lack of preparation I 
observe in grammar, and analytical 
writing.

I do not think AB prepares 
their students well in writing 
and grammar. My seventh 
grader barely knows 
grammatical rules, and my 
freshman took a summer 
writing course to receive this 
level of teaching. In my 
opinion teaching students to 
communicate their ideas 
clearly, and using evidence 
to back up claims is one of 
the most important skills they 
need for advanced study. I believe it is fair

I see some of this work needing to trickle down to the 
elementary levels, students arrive at RJ Grey with very 
different levels of preparation for the tiered instruction.

3/13/2023 20:13:01

I’m excited for this and hope the CP and AE all get their 
needs met. Currently AB is too intense w too much 
emphasis on levels, many  kids are not benefiting. 

Less pressure on those who can’t keep 
up with honors/AP rat race. Too much 
academic pressure exists, we need to 
reduce it and create MORE successful 
academic experiences for MORE 
students. 

Parents getting in the way of district 
implementation. Also, teachers not 
meeting students where they’re at. 
Teachers at AB leave so many kids 
unmoored, uncared for and unseen. 
This will further irritate already 
fatigued and disengaged teachers. 

Watch the students! Assess 
the culture with regularity, 
through the students. Have 
counselors step up, and 
teachers! Get Ms Dean 
actually talking to students. 

I had some trouble 
understanding this 
looking at the slides. The 
bottom line is AB must 
seek an environment w 
less pressure and 
stress, adding more 
opportunities for 
success.

I really think the biggest problems entail the pressure 
cooker environment! Teachers still have work to do around 
student assessment. My children are often weighed down 
by busywork, large assessments, and a lack of opportunity 
to learn from their mistakes and amend grades. A divide 
exist among genius, smart and lowly learners and the 
school owes it to kids to dispel this myth. However, 
students will only feel good about themselves when they 
feel connected to adults and teachers. This is a School that 
has a few star teachers that know how to make students 
feel seen a valued. Many students are unseen and 
disconnected from adults. This is also true of the 
counseling department. Unresponsive, unsympathetic and 
disinterested adults abound in this building. Everyone must 
remember that at the core of good learning is a safe, 
respectful community and the adults set the tone. 

3/13/2023 20:28:46 I am strongly in favor of having three tiers
I see my child not having to strive for a 
status that is unnecessary to achieve. None

Make sure the AE CP meld 
is indeed a meld. It should 
lean towards CP. curriculum 
needs to change. And 
homework needs to be given 
to achieve an academic 
result. 

The four tier system only achieves making students feel 
bad about themselves for no reason. This can create a 
feedback loop that leads to worse academic achievement 

3/13/2023 20:54:26

It favors students who may not be able to succeed in the 
AE courses.  Student who are on the cusp of an honors 
course will take an unleveled course that potentially 
could pose no challenge, and potentially not prepare 
them for college.   None.

It appears to favor students who can't 
or do not want to succeed in more 
difficult classes. 
For example, my Junior found the AE 
History course extremely challenging, 
only able to get C's and D's.  He 
dropped to CP, never opened a book, 
and got an A+ (and was unable to 
move back up after he found it 
rediculously easy).  It was a joke.  
Will the unleveled courses be like this 
CP?  I wan't my child to be 
challenged.   

Children that may challenge 
themselves in AE, won't be 
challenged in unleveled 
classes.  There is no reward 
for the smart children. None.

The course changes at the High School have been 
consistently dissapointing.  The elimination of choice 
(specifically Biology) was also a dissapointment for my 
freshman.  The changes seem to cater to the student who 
may not succeed in leveled classes, while eliminating 
challenges for the student who strives to succeed.  Not all 
students can succeed in all subjects, but typically there are 
one or two where the student can take pride in their 
success, either in Honors or AE.  You have eliminated this 
sense of pride by leveling the courses, and not rewarding 
hard work.  Eventually, AB will no longer have a reputation  
of challenging and producing students prepared for college 
courses.  Why not just eliminate all levels so all children 
can take the same class?  It still won't present the same 
opportunities for all students, but it will frustrate children 
who are not ready for the challenge and frustrate the 
children who want to be challenged.                  



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/13/2023 21:05:53

I am very concerned that this decision was already made 
before parents had any say in it. As a teacher in the 
district I heard rumblings but wasn't concerned until I got 
my sons class recommendations for next year as a 
senior. 

honestly I am having a hard time finding 
much good from what is happening 
here. 

From an educators stand point 
honestly I don't see how this will 
benefit students at all. My biggest 
concern is the fact that now you are 
throwing children together will various 
learning abilities. The previous 
leveling gave children the option to 
choose a level adequate for their 
learning style. This will not only 
increase the level of anxiety with 
many of our disadvantage learners 
and it is too bad that our 
administration do not see this. Then 
you have the upper levels that are 
now going to be paced much slower 
to help the various abilities. Having 
had two very different children go 
through the system (one of an IEP 
who benefited from CP classes and 
the other who took various levels 
from CP to honors.) I am saddened 
that this decision was done before 
any discussions with the community 
in mind. 

If you say that you really 
care about student mental 
health/anxiety...talk to 
them!!! My own children 
talked about this being an 
issue over and over again. 
Stop checking off boxes. 

I strongly urge you to rethink this decision to help ALL our 
students who are already struggling!

3/14/2023 8:05:52 Don’t like it CP.  leaves AE kids behind Leaves AE kids begind
How it will segregate even 
further. 

Is what it is.  Two levels 
accomplished very little.  
Haves and have nots 

What does it really matter.  The School Board will go 
through with it regardless of anyone’s thoughts - just like 
the decision with the Colonials mascot. 

3/14/2023 12:58:31

Overall, I'm not sure how this directly addresses the 
concern of getting a more equitable distribution of 
students in upper-level classes. If we need to have more 
focused programs to give students the skills and 
opportunities to join upper level classes, we should do 
that rather than just eliminating levels. 

I worry that my kids won't have the 
opportunity to be as challenged in the 
courses where they aren't ready to 
take an Honors class. 

Whether we are 
meaningfully impacting the 
chances of academic 
success for ELL, 
underrepresented, or 
economically disadvantaged 
students. 

Not in favor of this plan, which I think muddies the waters 
on the real goals. 

3/14/2023 16:42:57

Who is the intended audience for this presentation? Who 
actually attended the presentation on March 7th? It 
appears to me that the presentation is intended for 
parents of students who take CP/CP1 classes and would 
seemingly benefit from the “Leveling Up”. However, the 
people in the audience resisting change were those 
whose kids take AE/H/AP classes and feel that their 
child’s experience is going to be “diluted” by the merging 
of 3 lanes into 2 lanes or 1 lane (AE/CP/CP1 -> 
Unleveled). Those kids who typically take Honors/AP for 
80% of the classes and AE for the remaining 20% of the 
classes will now be forced to take Honors/AP because 
there may be a “dilution of GPA” by taking an “Unleveled” 
class instead of an AE class. My suggestion to the 
ABRHS leadership team is to understand the 
composition of the audience at the time of 
presentation/Q&A and address everyone’s needs. None Dilution of GPA/WGPA

There needs to be a 
statistically significant uptick 
in the average grades for 
students who would have 
been recommended to a 
CP/CP1 in the old model but 
are now taking the unleveled 
classes. If there is no uptick 
then this plan is a wasted 
effort. It is also essential to 
track if the teachers are 
being overworked because 
these students will need a lot 
more help.

The new scales make it 
appear that the old AE is 
the new Unleveled. Is 
this true? Are CP/CP1 
simply being eliminated? 
Or are we creating 
Unleveled as a blend of 
the old AE/CP/CP1? If it 
is a blend, then the new 
scales will have a 
diluting effect on 
students who would 
have typically taken AE 
and scored an A+. 
Further, someone in 
CP1 who would have 
typically scored an A+ 
(weighted GPA = 3.5) 
will only score a B (also 
a weighted GPA = 3.5) 
in the Unleveled class, 
which can be 
demotivating to that 
student.

Senior Survey Feedback slide - This slide is one-sided. 
Why were comments from AP/Honors students not 
included? What is their side of the story? It is like saying 
“we have come to an agreement that the rich should be 
taxed more” without including the definition of “rich” or 
asking the so called "rich" for their perspective. My 
suggestion is to either pick comments that represent the AB 
student community as a whole or just remove this slide 
because it does feel like it was “cherry picked”.

Overall impression about this proposed change - Only 
those from CP/CP1 motivated to be in the new cohort will 
benefit from this change. The rest will continue to find 
excuses to complain in their senior survey.

3/14/2023 19:22:30
It is a step back. AE, level is a useful middle ground that 
is needed by several students. I do not like this move. None.

I see the rigor in honors level 
reducing or  many AE students in 
Math, English, History will be forced 
to take CP level classes, thereby 
reducing the rigor for them too.

Reducing academic rigor in 
high school.

Do not support. I don't 
understand what it 
achieves Do not support this move whatsoever.



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/14/2023 20:57:58

My older child talks a lot about how people don’t get into 
schools from Acton as much as they do in other places. 
She says that they do not get credit for the work that they 
are doing based on how the levels currently are. That 
being said, I don’t think switching to two levels is the 
answer. It sounds like your AE level is really an honors 
level. So you should keep CP, my child has been in CP 
math all the way through high school, but 80 other 
classes. She tried to move out multiple times in math, but 
it was not for her. So that would be not great for many 
students. I don’t understand why you don’t get rid of the 
honors level instead. An offer students extra work if they 
are really so interested. So have CP, and called what is a 
E honors. Because that is really what it is at other 
schools. 

My older child won’t be affected by this. 
My younger child is not going to have 
the same opportunities that my older 
child dead. She is already saying she 
wants to sign up for all honors classes. I 
think this will be horrible for her, she will 
be really overwhelmed and stressed 
out. I don’t understand why you can’t 
leave three levels, the middle level 
might be a place where some kids could 
be less stressed out, and for other kids, 
the middle level might be a stretch. The 
school should be helping kids to move 
up through the levels, instead of just 
making their be less level… That seems 
like a stupid way to fix this problem. Stress. Lack of opportunity.

The changes in the colleges 
that students get excepted 
into. You should probably 
compare it to another school 
where they actually call the 
appropriate course and 
honors course. Instead of 
having crazy difficult classes. 
The stress levels of the 
students. And how those 
students who are in CP one 
classes are surviving. I had a 
child who is in CP classes… 
Who could not have been in 
the AE math class. I assume 
children in CP one classes 
will be the same. I don’t 
understand why you would 
do this to them. 

It has always been weird 
that a 4.0 is not an 
essay. Or a 5.0 is not an 
an and an honors class. 
I don’t know why you 
would not take this 
opportunity to fix that. I 
don’t believe there is 
another school that 
makes their students get 
an A+ in order to get a 
5.0 or a 4.0. It is sort of 
abusive to the students. 
I have no idea why you 
would do that.

You say you are implementing this slowly. But it is not 
solely for the class of 2027. Every year they will be the first 
class having this situation. If you were implementing it 
slowly, that would not happen. Why don’t you just do the 
freshman classes and wait a couple years and see how it’s 
going. Then do the sophomore classes… Or maybe you will 
discover it only works well in history, or English… I honestly 
don’t know how you could possibly do this in the math 
classes. For my daughter who is currently in high school 
that would’ve been  horrible.

3/15/2023 1:47:02

In general, I support de-leveling in most subject; 
however, in I do feel that this might be a recipe for 
disaster in mathematics.

My students would be less likely to take 
advanced classes in this plan.  In many 
subjects, AE would be a good fit for all 
of children, but with that not an option I 
do not seeing them moving up to honors 
or AP level nor would I encourage it.  

I am wondering how much thought 
has been given to the impact of the 
RSM (and similar programs) in the 
plan to de-level the math curriculum.  
My children are all strong in math and 
their current teachers have 
commented that they are above 
where they need to be for their 
current grade levels; however, years 
of being in class with students that 
attend math programs outside of 
school have greatly impacted their 
confidence in their abilities and made 
them feel behind their peers rather 
than ahead of where they should be 
for their grades.  Despite a 
recommendation for Algebra in 8th 
grade, one of my children opted to 
take 8th grade math because she 
was tired of being in class with 
students that knew the entire 
curriculum before it was taught.  
Going into 9th grade, she did not 
have a similar concern about taking 
the AE level of Algebra because she 
knew those students would have 
moved on to Honors Geometry in 9th 
grade.  I worry that the current plan 
would actually discourage students 
from taking on more of a challenge in 
math.

Students getting lost in the 
math curriculum, particularly 
students who struggle 
mathematically that are 
being forced to move to 
Algebra 1 rather than part 
Algebra 1/2.  Additionally, 
whether or not the students 
who would have taken AE 
are struggling in honors level 
or unchallenged in the non-
honors level.

Overall, the GPA and 
WPGA scales are fine.  
I'm wondering how for 
the class of 2027 math 
will be calculated as it 
appears AE will still be 
offered for next year.

Over past several years, I have had the opportunity to 
discussed the challenges of teaching mathematics to 
students of all levels within the same classroom with 
multiple teachers in the district.  I'm wondering how high 
school math teachers will be supported in teaching classes 
that contain students that might normally have taken 
Algebra Parts 1/2 and Algebra AE in the same classroom.  

3/15/2023 19:31:03 It's good He can take Honors classes He can take AE classes if he wants Keeping honors classes
A- should not give 4.0, 
only A+. 

Remove all classes except Honors. Need to teach Calculus 
3, multivariable calculus.

3/16/2023 6:59:04 I think it is being done haphazardly and inappropriately 

This year my student had to choose 
between CP physics or honors physics, 
as he was in AE Chen last year.  When 
asked about the GPa of the new 
classes, no one knew!  A rush to make 
changes is yet again a product of this 
superintendent.  Quite reminiscent to 
the “coaches” he insisted that teachers 
needed, for $1m.  Now our budget is 
short, and reduction in firces will be 
occurring. More tutoring than before

Don’t forget about the needs 
of the students!

I don’t think it makes 
sense at all.  

3/17/2023 17:08:29

I support the general concept of deleveling from an 
equity standpoint, but I suspect that the plan proposed 
here will backfire because it is an incomplete, half-
measure. Parents and kids will have no choice but to 
push kids to take all honors classes and this will further 
exacerbate inequities throughout the system. 

We avoid having to have tough 
conversations about taking non honors 
classes

My student will be forced to take all 
honors classes. I did this myself by 
choice when I went to AB and was 
hoping to avoid this outcome for my 
kids, but under the current plan we 
will not have an option.

Watch academic stress 
levels, homework loads, and 
exacerbating unequal 
enrollment by race and SES

I don't care about GPA, 
the whole thing is frankly 
absurd.



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/17/2023 17:19:34

As a college professor at a highly rated private institution, 
AB students stand out BECAUSE they have the option to 
take classes catered to their specific skill set. Mixing 
students with students that are academically misaligned 
with them increases resentment (from both sides), and 
really reduces what students can learn. I would be very, 
very disappointment to see leveling undo all of the 
excellent progress AB has made. There are certainly 
other ways to increase diversity and inclusion in the 
school without involving academics. None :(

I don't want to see my students be 
set back by not having the 
opportunity to be in a class designed 
for their "level." 

I think it will be difficult to 
quantify the "success" of this 
program. Will more students 
"know each other" from other 
classes?  Sure.  Will they be 
academically "successful?"  
Yes, but measuring what 
their potential WAS will be 
difficult. There will be lots of 
missed opportunities for 
these students by stunting 
their potential progress.

The GPA scale is less 
important. Again, being 
in higher administration, 
as long as the GPA is 
defined, colleges 
interpret it (and re-
calculate it) as they see 
fit.

Seriously re-consider this.  This is much more than trying to 
"level the playing field" and giving opportunities to 
everyone.

3/17/2023 17:24:00 Leveling into two classes will cause problems

We are worried that high achieving 
children need to take classes outside of 
school because school doesn’t offer 
high level class

Not enough personalized academic 
levels 

Please provide us the information about Middlesex 
Community College. How it works as a dual enrollment

3/17/2023 17:26:57

I am concerned about the lowest level students getting 
the support that they need. And I am concerned about 
the middle students, now being in class with those lower 
level students who will need support… So those middle 
students will not get any attention, and will not get 
challenged. Meanwhile, those honors and AP students 
have plenty of options, and their classes are not being 
changed at all, if you really believed in the plan, then you 
would combine all of the students. You wouldn’t keep the 
“smart students” separate. 

None really. My student happens to be 
a middle level student. So they will now 
have students and their class who need 
additional support. And their teachers 
will have to give that additional support. 
So my child will get less.

My student is a middle level student. 
Previously they would’ve been an AE 
classes. Now they will be in class 
with students who need more 
support, and the class will likely go 
slower. Or they can choose to try to 
do the honors classes were the 
students are highly competitive, and 
it is a stressful environment. Neither 
of those things and great for my child.

The forgotten middle. High 
achievers have no changes. 
Lower achievers will be 
watched anyway. It’s those 
middle students that get 
ignored.

I don’t really look much 
at things like this. I 
would assume that you 
just use the standard 
GPA scale. But, 
apparently, then I would 
be mistaken. Your GPA 
scale is very wacky. If 
you are proposing, a 
new scale, why not just 
use the standard scale?

And if you’re not using 
the standard scale, 
could you please at least 
explain why? Perhaps 
that is something that 
you could do in the 
second meeting.

I noticed in this email that just got sent out by the 
superintendent. It says an overview of the feedback will be 
shared. I think many people would like to see the actual raw 
data. Can you please have that available for people to look 
at if they would like.

3/17/2023 17:54:48

 I honestly don’t really care either way. But my child is 
going to be a freshman next year and I don’t like that 
they will be a guinea pig for this new plan. None really

I am concerned that my child is the 
class of 2027, and every year they 
will have teachers who are teaching 
this condensed level situation for the 
first time. That really doesn’t seem 
fair. In the presentation, the history, 
teacher, or the science teacher, I 
forget which one… One of them even 
said the first year is really a learning 
experience, and it will be better than 
next year. But you’re forcing the class 
of 2027 to be the first year again and 
again, and again, all through their 
high school experience. And that 
stinks.

Maybe you should make a 
survey that you give kids 
now. And then you can give 
it every year to see how their 
thoughts and feelings about 
learning in their classes 
might be changing. 
Otherwise it is hard to know. 
There are so many students.

I guess I don’t really 
understand why it’s 
changing. But if you are 
going to change it, then 
you might as well give 
these kids a 4.0 for an A, 
or a 5.0. It seems really 
weird. You would make 
them get an A+. Maybe 
that is Acton’s trying to 
show how they are all 
about excellence and 
pressure… You really 
have to be perfect to get 
that 4.0. I think it’s kind 
of gross actually.

I understand there’s a large population of highly competitive 
students and families. But we really need to support of the 
other students as well. Not by dumping them all in the same 
room together. Maybe there are other ways to support them 
and other places for them to find success.



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/17/2023 17:57:35

As an elementary school teacher for over twenty years, 
who has extensive experience differentiating instruction 
in a heterogenous environment while maintaining high 
expectations for all students and attempting to teach the 
entirety of the grade level curriculum, this is as close to 
impossible as it gets at the high school level.  My 
assumption is that all teachers are expected to 
differentiate within their individual classrooms that are 
“leveled”, knowing full well that within that “leveled class”, 
there is still a wide range of learning styles, needs, etc.  
Imagine stretching that range even further.  Unless we’re 
planning on reducing class size dramatically, reducing 
the amount of content to be covered, offering free-
tutoring services, or providing multiple teachers per 
classroom for small group/co-teaching opportunities, this 
new arrangement will likely lead to increased teacher 
frustration/stress/burnout, behavioral/classroom 
management issues and/or ineffective teaching.    My 
worry for students is that this will now create a 2-track 
system and further enlarge the divide that you’re 
attempting to remove.  

Opportunities for my student, who would 
have been described as an AE/Honors 
bubble student in some subjects, 
include the potential for upward mobility 
and the exposure to a more diverse 
student body on a daily basis.  

Concerns for my student include an 
uptick in classroom 
management/behavioral issues that 
she has avoided for the last two 
years and an even more intense 
desire to achieve Honors/AP level 
courses, which will ultimately result in 
increased stress.  

On a side note, the junior high staff 
and high school staff should 
communicate clearly what the 
expectations are for subjects like 
“Environmental Science”, “Honors 
Environmental Science” and “AP 
Environmental Science”.  My student’
s grade has been a consistent A- in 
eighth grade Science this year.  She 
has been told by her teacher directly 
that she take the unleveled course in 
ninth grade.  This “recommendation” 
seems to be the opposite of the 
message that parents received at the 
recent forum.  We were told that 
students should be “stretching” 
themselves to reach full potential.  
This seems like a contradiction. 

How did this implementation 
work with the Science 
department last year?  If 
50% dropped the course, 
what changes have been 
made to ensure student and 
teacher success rates for 
this school year?  

The scales need to be in 
accordance with college 
admission expectations.  
If they're not in 
alignment or clearly 
communicated with 
higher education, how is 
this helping our student 
population?

Have we every polled students in all four grades, within 
each subject, to identify the percentage of students in 
Honors/AP courses who receive outside 
tutoring/educational enrichment/support? 

The tree diagram is missing in your documentation with the 
proposed plan.  I'd like to see it before course registration 
(which begins next week.)

3/17/2023 18:05:29

During the pandemic year my child was forced to choose 
between a CP class and an honors class because there 
was no virtual AE level. It was horrible. The honors class 
was stressful and anxiety-producing, so he dropped to 
CP and was completely bored for the entire year. I worry 
very much that this new plan forgets about kids like him 
--  kids in the middle. Unless you do something to make 
the honors level less insane in terms of workload, there 
is very much a need for this level of course, and doing 
away with it is absolutely the wrong choice. None

See above -- he is a "middle of the 
road" student and I'm very concerned 
he will be forced to choose between 
feeling in over his head and feeling 
bored and unchallenged.

The students who had been 
in AE to see which courses 
they choose and what they 
think of them.

I'm really sort of 
"whatever" about this. 
As long as colleges 
know what to do with the 
numbers, it really 
doesn't matter.

Please do away with honor roll! So many kids work so hard 
to get grades that don't qualify them for it, and they end up 
feeling bad about themselves.

3/17/2023 19:22:26
I am concerned that we will need to dumb down our 
curriculum so that students can keep up I don’t see any advantages to this plan

I am concerned that students at the 
top and bottom of the curve will suffer 
from this plan

Keep an eye on students at 
the top and bottom of the 
curve

I don’t understand how you can serve all students with such 
a flat level structure. There is not a one-size-fits-all 
approach to learning.

3/17/2023 19:43:35

I watched the presentation and am IRATE. You are 
reducing class options which provide students with fewer 
options. Each remaining level will need to accommodate 
a wider range of proficiency . The result will be a 
curriculum which teaches to the least common 
denominator.

I see fewer opportunities and greater 
failure with this revised 'plan'.

Fewer opportunities for success in 
the world.

I think teacher/educator self-
assessment is a failure to 
the students

Knowledge matters 
more than GPA.

Cancel this plan. Open dialogue, truthfully, with the parents 
of AB Schools as to the true reasons why you are reducing 
the current multiple class options. It makes no sense that a 
two class option framework can be better for students than 
a multiple option framework. 



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/18/2023 6:26:54

I think that there has been a lot of thought put into the 
plan.  It is a big change and while the intentions are in 
the right direction, it will take time to adjust.

I see the opportunity to engage with a 
wider range of students.

I have two major concerns with the 
plan.  First, the "regular" course will 
have a wider range of learning styles 
in them.  When my older kids were in 
"non-leveled" classes, one of the 
main comments was that not 
everyone in there was interested in 
learning or participating.  Particularly 
for subjects that encourage review, 
thought, and discussion, having only 
half of the class participating takes 
away from the experience from those 
students who are engaged and 
interested in the material.  It also 
presents complications for the 
teachers and staff.  My second 
concern, which is related to the first, 
is that it will push more kids into the 
H/AP track because of the concern 
above.  They want that enriched 
experience and will feel pushed into a 
higher level.  This will increase their 
stress and workload as my 
observation is that those classes are 
a significant effort.

Certainly there are hard 
metrics around performance.  
I would also encourage 
reviewing enrollment in 
H/AP. In addition, I would 
step up the pulse / climate 
surveys to see how students 
are doing.

I am relieved it is being 
simplified. For my older 
kids in the old system, I 
had a hard time figuring 
out their GPA and, 
through this briefing, 
found that some of their 
courses that were not 
leveled weren't even 
counted in the WGPA.  
My sense is that 
colleges do rely on GPA, 
but likely know that each 
school has their own 
method and does their 
own normalization so it 
really doesn't matter.

3/18/2023 9:21:07

I think we should could it as it is. It will be challenging for 
teachers to differentiate for such diverse learners. The 
classes may end up not bringing challenging for those 
students who can't quite handle honors.

I think they will feel pressured to take all 
honors because the CP classes will be 
much too low. Additionally, the classes 
may be too challenging for struggling 
students who, under the current system, 
are in the CP-level classes.

My kids will have graduated by the 
time this plan comes into affect. 
However, if our school becomes less 
challenging, our school's ranking and 
quality could go down. Perhaps 
there's a non-academic way to build 
school community.

I would see what students 
think. 

I don't care so much 
about the GPA scale. I 
care about academic 
happiness and growth. 
This new plan seems to 
pacify lower achievers at 
the expense of those 
who can work at a 
higher level. Ultimately, 
school is about pushing 
each student to reach 
their potential. I don't 
think this plan does that. 

I expect this proposed plan to affect our school's ranking 
and test scores. Those are the reasons my family moved to 
Acton, and my kids take a mix of levels, not just Honors/AP. 
I think it could affect property values.

3/18/2023 14:15:56 I agree with deleveling  the courses
None - because she's graduating in 
2025. None I wish this plan was in place for next year - (Class of 2025)

3/18/2023 15:02:45

The current levels are not serving the students at all and 
desperately need changing.  The proposal is modest at 
best and will still likely lead to an extension of students 
facing extreme competition and  not thriving at AB.

None.  The only impact this proposal 
has is in Math, and those changes won't 
go into effect until my son is out of AB.

The current cutthroat, nasty culture of 
AB will continue.  The students are 
miserable at the school, and 
marginalized students are being 
actively failed.  Flattening the math 
classes in a few years will not solve 
this problem.  You need to think 
bigger and honestly create a 
supportive culture where LEARNING 
and opportunities to succeed are 
present.  Right now, kids have no 
chance to change their path no 
matter how hard they work.  And 
that's BS.

I have been very 
disappointed with AB 
schools.  We moved here in 
2019 based on the 
reputation of the schools, 
and they have not lived up to 
their reputation.  The culture 
of the schools pits kids 
against one another and 
creates a class-system.  
Children can't work hard to 
raise themselves up - they 
are stuck at whatever point 
they entered 9th grade.  It's 
grossly unfair.  ABS is 
keeping marginalized kids 
down instead of lifting 
everyone up.  I think 
leadership and teachers 
should have a huge shake 
up instead of this teetering 
baby step.  

This is unlikely to matter 
to anyone.  As shown in 
the slides, most colleges 
recalculate GPAs and 
the new WGPA won't 
impact the students.  Not 
sure why this is so 
important except it will 
reinforce the levels that 
students are placed (and 
held) in throughout their 
AB careers.  It very likely 
will make that class 
division issue worse 
because in addition to 
being separated by 
these levels which 
students can't escape, 
students in the lower 
levels will never show 
excellence in class rank 
either.  It's compounding 
the problem and not 
solving it.

The kids that attend ABHS think it's a pressure-cooker and 
a lot of students really hate it there.  This "plan" doesn't 
address the real issues at the school and won't impact 
anybody currently enrolled in there.  
Why as a school are you so satisfied with the way that 
marginalized children are set up to fail within your rigid and 
striated system?  Why are you seemingly doubling down on 
that?  What are you doing to make the school a kinder 
place?  And I do not mean give less work or expect less of 
kids.  But allow more opportunities for everyone to work 
hard, level up, and succeed.  The school is absolutely 
missing this part.  No wonder it is a cesspool of racism and 
hatred. The kids are being taught that the minorities stuck 
in the CP classes are less than them (this is also being 
instilled into those minority students).  You are not raising 
them up or even throwing a rope they can climb. (And I am 
the mother of white kids).  



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/18/2023 17:46:01

I appreciate the effort put into drafting and presenting the 
plan, as well as working with the community collect 
feedback.

This plan could provide a chance for a 
wider variety of kids to be in class 
together than what would be possible 
with more levels.  This could help bring 
new perspectives into class discussions 
as it could be a more diverse group.

I have significant concerns about the 
ability to teach and learn in this 
environment.  My daughter was part 
of a math class last year that tried to 
mix learners at different levels and 
the result was very unsatisfactory.  
The teacher (and helper) had a hard 
time trying to teach across the large 
difference in abilities, leading to 
higher level learners being bored and 
waiting for the rest of the class to 
catch up.  This reduced what she 
could have gotten out of the class if it 
was better geared for these higher 
level learners.

Ask teachers how effectively 
they are able to deliver class 
material, and if they find that 
it is either too difficult or too 
easy on either end of the 
spectrum.  In these 
circumstances, negative 
behavior could emerge as 
some kids get frustrated at 
things that may be difficult 
where other kids are bored 
because it is easy.  This 
could either be friction 
between specific students or 
disrupting the entire class.

Admittedly, I am not well 
versed in this area, but I 
get a general sense that 
the change will 'cook the 
books' to make the 
overall GPA higher 
regardless if the output 
of the students changed 
at all.

I think this approach could be good for some kids that 
would have been at a lower level and are motivated to take 
on the challenge.  However, there are some that just won't 
be able to make up the difference or will become frustrated 
an give up.  I look back on my time in high school, and 
there were definitely some kids that just did not want to 
learn, and negatively impacted other students that were 
focused on the material.  It is also the kids at the upper end 
of the standard levels that should be challenged more to try 
and be promoted to H/AP, but I suspect that would be quite 
difficult in this setting.

In short, I think this approach will reduce student's ability to 
reach their maximum potential.

3/19/2023 8:21:29

I think the course leveling plan was made with 
consideration, and is moving toward more 
heterogeneous grouping, which is in line with research. I 
am not confident that teachers will feel supported in 
learning how to differentiate for students in their classes, 
and I think there will still be separation into friend groups 
and judgment based on level. 

In general, my child has felt supported 
in making a decision for each class with 
her current teacher. 

I wonder whether more families will 
push for their children to select 
honors courses than before because 
of the lack of step down choices. I 
also have concerns because my child 
seems to be getting speeches to the 
whole class from teachers about how 
hard honors classes are and how you 
really shouldn’t take them without 
recommendation/very high grades in 
junior high, and the homework level 
is so much that you can’t have other 
interests if you want to be successful 
academically. I do understand that 
the high school has a reputation of 
being academically demanding and 
stressful for students. However, 
some children take what their 
teachers say to heart and even with 
very high averages in some subjects 
(with no issues completing work), she 
is now very anxious about choosing 
honors for any subject. I think the 
messaging could be developed 
better. I also think kids should be 
informed of how the college process 
works (and I do realize it’s wild right 
now because so much is changing in 
the college admissions landscape) as 
one way of helping to inform their 
decisions.

I think you need to pay close 
attention to what 
differentiation looks like from 
class to class. It will be 
important to know whether 
the leveled classes actually 
are more or less rigorous 
depending on the group. You 
will also need to pay 
attention to how students in 
courses treat one another-
are they generous 
colleagues supporting one 
another? Are some students 
working much more or 
harder than others and 
feeling that impact? Are 
some students acting better 
than others and asking why 
their classmates are even 
taking a specific course? I 
also think it will be important 
to watch the number of 
courses needed/offered at 
each level. If courses aren’t 
much different from one 
another, I would consider 
collapsing levels more and 
also think a lot about 
weighting of grades.

I don’t really know 
enough about the impact 
of grade weighting to 
speak on this point, but I 
think it will be important 
to track the impact of the 
scales and make 
adjustments as needed. 
From the presentation, it 
sounds like the most 
important thing is clear 
communication with 
colleges, so that seems 
like something to be on 
top of.

I do think by eliminating some levels there is more fear of 
the higher/harder levels and that having a larger gradient 
allowed for students who are not risk takers to find a 
comfortable place to be. I would be a proponent of 
deleveling altogether and would be very interested in dual 
enrollment or similar opportunities for students.



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/19/2023 11:47:20

I am concerned.  Four levels seems like too many, but 
two seems like too few.  Reflecting on my own high 
school experience, there are three types of students:      • 
Group A: Students who value the class and are talented 
at the subject     • Group B: Students who value the 
class, but have no particular aptitude for the subject     • 
Group C: Students who do not value the class, would 
rather not be there, and are only in attendance because 
it is required by law.  Group C is not made up of bad 
students, simply students with other priorities (which may 
even be other classes).  However, their presence of even 
a few of these students is poison to the classroom.  Their 
attitude is contagious, their behavior disruptive, and their 
contributions often counterproductive.  My experience in 
classes shared with Group C students is that they were 
largely a waste of time, occasionally dangerous, and I 
would have been better off just reading the text book in 
the library.  I fundamentally believe that convincing a 
child that a class is valuable is a completely different 
exercise than teaching a child who is already convinced.  
Therefore, the first priority of leveling, in my opinion, is to 
get the students who don’t want to be there into a 
different classroom from those who do.  To not do so is 
to risk turning Group B and A students into Group C 
students, which is simply unacceptable.  As a parent who 
is trying to instill value for all subjects in my child, I would 
encourage my child to “choose whatever level is right for 
you, but not the lowest,” regardless of the leveling 
system in place  When only two levels are offered, this is 
a problem.  Especially if, as the administration has 
indicated, there will be no reduction of high standards in 
the higher level classes.  The message I am hearing you 
tell Group B students is, “You learn to run with the big 
dogs, or you write off that subject.”  Now, my relatively 
non-pushy message of “choose whatever level is right for 
you, but not the lowest” is an extremely pushy one, but 
not one I am willing to surrender.  I think many parents 
will feel the same way, and since much of the pressure 
on the students is initiated by parents, the overall 
academic pressure in the school will be significantly 
magnified.

While I don’t think I like the proposal, 
the motivation behind it is good.  I 
particularly like the emphasis on upward 
mobility.  While I hope my student is in 
Group A or B for most of her classes, 
she may be a Group C student.  And if 
the school can really provide an 
environment that instills a love of 
learning in students only in school by 
requirement, that’s miraculous.  Your 
heart is in the right place, and I hope 
you succeed.

I think my concerns are probably 
clear from the my thought’s section.  
I’m concerned my child will be a 
Group B student who becomes a 
Group C if there is no “middle option.”

I think you should watch the 
students who are signing up 
for the honors level just to 
stay out of the lower level, 
and particularly watch 
motivated students in the 
lower level and do whatever 
it takes to keep their 
motivation from waning after 
being placed among the 
unmotivated.

I do not care about GPA.  
Whatever you do with 
that is fine with me.

I like the three level system proposed for the Science 
department.  One thing that I did not hear addressed is 
specifically why science deserves three levels while 
everything else deserves two.  I find this to be an equity 
issue.  While your “ELA kid” who also values science can 
take a middle level (not AP) science, no such option is 
offered to the “Science kid” who also values English.  He 
either needs to get his English game to the highest level, or 
be stuck in the same class as kids who are there only by 
requirement.

3/19/2023 11:49:38 Happy with it

Less challenging for a student to 
stretch, more access to challenging 
workload

weighted GPA for next 3 classes at 
the HS will be very limited.
Differentiated lessons in a more 
homogeneous setting. Teacher workload!

After you get past 2027, 
it shouldn't be a 
problem. Good luck with all the community feedback!

3/19/2023 13:47:19

It is adding pressure for advance kids to be in honors/AP 
for all subjects. kids in common  level who are advances 
and not ready yet for honors are under pressure to move 
to honors level. Course in common level has to be 
maintain at more common level as for the kids who are at 
this level has no fall back levels. This doesnot justify to 
kids who are little advance and stuck at common level. 

My kids will plan to balance between 
honors/ AP only which may add more 
pressure. 

My kid would like to balance her 
courses between AP, honors and 
advance class. But with this level 
changes kids are not ready to take 
common level which may not 
challenge kids with advance level. 
This adds more pressure to advance 
kids to take all honors/AP. 

The new WGPA doesn't 
provide the kids taking 
honors and AP classes 
with a fair score. The 
new scale doesn't 
motivate kids to 
challenge themselves 
and instead causes 
them to want to do the 
easiest option.

3/19/2023 22:55:05 It is an interesting change, but has many flaws.
I don't see many opportunities in this 
plan for my student.

I see many flaws, as both teachers 
and students will have more difficulty 
with their classes. Teachers will have 
difficulty teaching our students, as 
the levels of our students have an 
extremely wide range. The teachers 
would have to resort to teaching the 
middle students, leaving the top 
students in our district wasting their 
time in such easy courses, and the 
bottom students struggling to follow. 
This can lead to stress in our 
students, which is something we 
never welcome.

We should carefully watch if 
the top students are bored, 
and if the bottom students 
struggling and stressed. 

I disagree completely 
with the proposed GPA 
and WPGA scales for 
the Class of 2027 and 
after.

I think this change will harm our students more than it gives 
them opportunities. I have a 7th Grader currently in the 
middle school. This year was the first year without separate 
levels for 7th grade mathematics, and he has already 
thoroughly understood everything in the curriculum. He 
explains to me on a daily basis how bored he is during his 
math class. As a parent, I don't want him to lose interest in 
such a vital class. This does not apply to only my son. This 
applies to quite a good number of our students, lacking 
interest because of the content taught in class they have 
already grasped. If the schools cannot provide fitting 
learning opportunities for this group of kids, they may seek 
other education opportunities.



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/19/2023 23:07:51

I do not agree with the proposed leveling plan.  To 
encourage more diversity between student groups, I 
would suggest increased levels of clubs and 
extracurricular activities that encourage interactions 
between currently disparate groups.  The goal of HS 
education should be to best educate the ABRHS 
students.  Leveling to just two levels will negatively 
impact students in two ways.  Honors students will feel 
less motivated to learn if the level of education for them 
is reduced.  In addition, they not be given the opportunity 
to expand their educational topics if level of the Honors 
program is reduced.  For students in CP, they will be in 
classes with students that previously would be in AE 
courses.  They will struggle to have confidence in their 
learning if they are competing with students that should 
be in AE classes.  If the current CP students are less 
confident they will less likely ask questions in class and 
their learning journey will be stunted.  For AE students, 
they will be faced with having to either be enrolled at a 
lesser rigor of study and potentially be less motivated, or 
have to put themselves in an Honors course and be over 
their heads.

I don't see opportunities in this plan for 
my students.  I think it limits their ability 
to learn most effectively and won't give 
them any increased opportunities to 
interact with different student cohorts.

I am not sure what the impetus for 
this action is based on.  The rationale 
seems to be based on comments 
from three different students from 
three different years.  The research 
for the plan of action seems, at best, 
circumstantial and not rigorous.  
Some of the quotes used in the 
presentation were from students that 
graduated during the Covid period, 
so may be more impacted by the 
pandemic than by course leveling.  
What does the majority of the student 
base feel about the current leveling of 
courses and whether there is a 
problem with this.  It seems like this 
drastic change is based on the 
qualitative comments from a few 
students over the course of the last 5 
years.  I think a more rigorous study 
and quantitative research needs to 
be done to justify this level of 
curriculum change.

The proposed leveling will 
disenfranchise the honor students 
and CP students alike.  They will put 
CP students in a situation where they 
feel less confident to ask questions in 
classes (thus foregoing better 
learning opportunities), and stunt the 
potential academic growth of Honors 
students due to the leveling.  In 
addition, current AE level students 
will be faced with having a reduced 
level of academic rigor or step into a 
Honors program that may be at too 
high a level for them.

I have three students currently 
enrolled at ABRHS, and all three feel 
the proposed leveling is a bad idea 
and negatively impact their 
educational experience.  In their 
view, perhaps 4 levels of classes are 
too much, but two are too few.  Three 
would be a more appropriate number 
of levels.

I don't think you should 
implement this plan.  If 
implemented, I'd want to see 
how the High School ranking 
within the state of 
Massachusetts and 
nationally is impacted.  Also, 
student MCAS scores.

I am not in a position to 
comment on the scales

I would like to understand the rationale and the basis for the 
rationale of this drastic change.  It seems rash and based 
on comments from a few students from the last 5 to 7 
years.  Educational policy should not be based on a few 
students' comments.  I don't think either of the stated goals 
is the primary goal of high school administrators.  I see the 
goal of H.S. administrators should be the promote an 
environment that provides the best educational 
environment and curriculum levels for all students.

I think the leveling is a horrible idea.

3/20/2023 10:54:41

I do not agree with it because it seems odd that change 
is starting in high school and not in the lower grades.  For 
years now the elementary schools have been becoming 
known as the hard or easy schools.  Maybe this should 
be addressed , in the beginning of our childrens' 
education.  We are not helping our young adults by not 
letting them work towards goals and earning positions 
based on hard work and diligence. None

Being put in groups with students 
who may disrupt class

I guess we need to know 
what your goals are moving 
forward with this. How do 
you plan on knowing if this 
works or not?

There are still colleges 
and universities whose 
population have above a 
4.0---will our students 
not have an option to 
attend or apply to these 
schools?

I am not sure if the community fully realizes why this is 
happening and how you intend to measure its success.  So 
many times in the past few years it seems as if the 
community is divided and I think it is because of lack of 
information and abrupt changes.  It is disheartening to say 
the least.

3/20/2023 15:25:11 Not in favor

The administration should look at 
weighted GPA's across all 4 buckets, 
not just 2 buckets

Students will not be motivated to 
push with AP because AP is 
weighted the same way as H. 
Similarly students will not be 
motivated to do AE as AE will be 
weighted the same way as CP. You 
will have a lot of students dumbing 
down in both cases.

How many people are pulling 
their kids out of AB and/or 
moving out of town

Please weigh the GPA 
across the 4 buckets 
instead of 2

Can we please leave things as is. Why are we fixing 
something that is not broken.



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/20/2023 15:58:24 i do not agree with the new policy 

0 opportunities because the more levels 
the better teaching a kid can get as it is 
more personalized for each student. 
also to say that kids do not get to 
interact i do not think that is true , any 
person can go to a clue to get to know 
new people. i also think that is devalues 
acton as a town as it will make our 
schools less valued. i also think that AE 
which is the level you are going to take 
away is a very important level and to get 
rid of any level will not help at all. 

that the kids won’t be able to learn as 
well and if they are being pushed to a 
higher level and if they move down 
then they will not be as academically 
challenged. it will make the choice of 
classes much harder for kids as two 
choices are not enough for all of the 
kids at the school and there are many 
different kids at different levels. 

the kids opinions as nobody 
has asked the kids what they 
think

i think that they have no 
say and there we’re no 
problems before stop the unleving!!!! 

3/20/2023 19:33:08

As per the school, more number of students may get an 
access to the honors program.  But, just by getting into 
Honors classes is not enough and students should  also 
be able to cope up with the Honors programs as well. I 
feel it adds tremendous pressure for kids .

I'm not sure if I see any benefits about 
this leveling program.

With this leveling ,if most kids are 
getting into Honors program, Are you 
going to level down the curriculum? If 
yes, Its loss for the students who can 
be challenged.  and I believe AB 
schools are well known for their 
standards in the curriculum,  and 
most students are able to do well in 
colleges with the solid foundation 
during their school time. 

The amount of pressure 
students will be going 
through by getting easy 
access to honors classes 
should be watched carefully.  
Not sure how this helps for 
kids to have wide social 
contacts. I feel instead it 
feels more pressure on the 
students. 

I'm bit confused about 
the grading . Is it the 
Grade or Weighted GPA 
that matters ? if A- in 
Honors and A+ in AE 
are having same 
Weighted GPA, 
Students who get A- in 
Honors, why any would 
they want to be in 
Honors rather they 
choose to be AE get the 
same score. ? I may be 
wrong in understanding 
this . Can you please 
more elaborate in the 
Tomorrow zoom 
meeting?

Can you share the stats of the percentages of the students 
who got A+ in AE programs in previous years.? Just want 
to understand more about the motive behind these 
changes.

3/21/2023 11:26:47

 I think this is a worthwhile, forward-looking experiment 
that challenges the status quo and has the potential to 
disrupt beliefs about who can meet the demands of more 
academically rigorous coursework.  

My graduating senior said if the new 
unleveled course structure had been in 
place, she would've pushed herself to 
take honors-level courses earlier in her 
HS career. Multiple levels made the 
negative self talk ("I won't make it in 
Honors") easier. 

I won't have a child in the school 
system next year, but looking back at 
the journeys of my 3 children at AB, I 
would offer that the least engaging 
courses that resulted in a check-the-
boxes-approach to coursework were 
those where my children were 
passive recipients of large quantities 
of information that they were then 
required to spit back in various forms.    
Also, at the 3/7 presentation, nothing 
substantive was said about how this 
will impact students receiving special 
education.

(1) Student engagement 
levels. (2) Capacity to 
provide differentiated 
instruction and instructional 
supports. (3) Tracking 
enrollment and course 
success with disaggregated 
data. (4) Reporting college 
matriculation/post-graduate 
program plans 
disaggregated.  

I watched the video of the 3/7 presentation. In my view, AB 
still has a marketing problem,  though I'm not sure this was 
avoidable given the local demographics and entrenched 
belief that more levels result in a superior educational 
experience for students. It's a new day. People, generally, 
don't believe more students are capable of successfully 
completing more rigorous coursework even thought it's 
been proven that they can, and they don't understand how 
leveling often leads to tracking which can have lifelong 
consequences. Good luck with this initiative! I look forward 
to seeing how it evolves in the coming years.

3/21/2023 17:08:36
I am not in favor of reducing the levels. Cramming CP1, 
CP, AE into one signature level does not make sense. None

Because there will no longer be an 
official AE level, my student will be 
forced to take Honors level. This will 
lead to more stress on my student.

How does this affect college 
admissions? What are the 
colleges treating the 
signature level at? My 
student and her older sister 
are convinced that the 
colleges will treat signature 
level at CP level. How do 
these course levels translate 
when compared to other 
comparable school districts 
in the area like Lexington, 
Newton, CC (NOT Westford 
Academy).  

I am glad that the 
signature level is at the 
same level as the 
current AE level.

1. For the sake of DEI, cramming CP1, CP, AE into one 
signature level does not make sense. There are other ways 
to provide opportunities to students from diverse 
backgrounds to socialize and mingle.
2. For more opportunities, you can provide better pathways 
for transitioning from CP1/CP levels in lower grades to 
higher levels in higher grades. The answer does *not* have 
to be taking away levels.
3. For CP1/CP students, forcing them in the same 
classroom as AE students is stressful and unhelpful. It 
lowers student morale when they always find themselves at 
the bottom of their class.
4. For AE students, forcing them to share classroom with 
CP1/CP students is a disservice to them also. The pace 
and material will be "lesser" and this will take higher-level 
learning away from them. Most of them will be forced to 
take Honors level classes, creating stressed students.



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/21/2023 19:40:18
I see the added opportunities for 
mobility as a positive improvement.

I am concerned that students will not 
have as individualized of an 
experience as they would have had 
with more levels.

How this affect teachers and 
if the needs of would be AE 
students are met.

I believe that the 
unleveled option is being 
weighted to highly and 
that if colleges calculate 
AE as a CP GPA, then 
they will re calculate 
your new level anyway 
so the GPA you give 
students should reflect 
the GPA they will 
receive in college 
admissions.

3/21/2023 19:42:07

i think there should be cp classes, i know there was a 
problem with social groups from different levels, but even 
with two levels in 8th grade there's still a separation. 
having mixed classes doesn't change anything because 
then kids just separate into two groups. instead of 
different levels kids pretty much see it as 'smart math 
class' and 'stupid math class' people are always going to 
compare themselves to other people, even in the classes 
with no levels so ithnk cp classes would overall still be 
beneficial since it could provide more support. 

i dont think its a good 
idea because i feel like 
people will try less since 
it will be easier to get a 
better gpa, i think 
instead it should be 
easier to level out of cp 
and cp1 classes. for 
example if right now the 
requirement to get from 
cp to ae was graduating 
with a b, maybe it could 
be graduating with a b or 
recommendation from a 
teacher, because then if 
there was improvement 
or good work ethic they 
could still level up

in some classes that are mixed, people in the middle find it 
hard because of the different skill levels, for example my 
freind is having a hard time pracicing for a test with his 
classmated because he keeps being placed in groups with 
people much more or less skilled, and it means you either 
have to help your group, or you have to hope that your 
group helps you, and people will always be more focused 
on their grades than yours, so if you're the worst in the 
group you're pretty much screwed unless you get lucky with 
groupmates. 

3/21/2023 19:59:55

I am absolutely supportive of inclusion of all types of 
students in every opportunity possible. In this case, 
regardless of race, socio economic status, or other 
factors, there simply are some students who are not as 
committed to or interested in learning. Putting them in 
heterogeneous classes requires new teacher skills - 
teachers must find ways to challenge all students, not 
teach to the lowest level of interest and engagement.

After listening to the presentation and 
reviewing the slides, I'm having a very 
difficult time finding any opportunities for 
my two ABRHS students, one of whom 
takes zero honors courses. There are 
far better ways to engage students 
socially than to de-level. A stronger 
culture that cracks down on alcohol and 
vaping would be a start. Similarly, 
inclusion in athletics and clubs would be 
far more effective in connecting 
students to each other socially - de-level 
sports instead of courses! Learn from 
AB Community Ed Boys Basketball and 
your track programs - NO ONE is 
excluded from those and that is where 
you have true inclusion. Within AB, the 
children excluded socially are those 
who come from families who have not 
spent years and thousands of dollars on 
clubs sports, Russian school of math, 
etc. OR they are just so-so and 
continually lose out, get cut, lose 
confidence, get lost in the mix, and feel 
excluded because they are not stars. 
That is the social problem, and it's a big 
one.

As a parent of a student in a 9th 
grade heterogeneous class, my child 
is INCREDIBLY frustrated and has 
made this known to both the teacher 
and counselor. The teacher is not 
able to engage the students at all - 
beyond a couple who actually are 
interested and personally engaged. 
Most other students play games in 
class, or leave class regularly, or 
simply zone out. My child is clearly 
losing out on learning because the 
class operates at the lowest common 
denominator of engagement. It is 
very disappointing that the only way 
for my child to receive appropriate 
education is to either happen to get a 
very strong teacher next year, or to 
level up to honors which is more 
challenging than appropriate for my 
child. Heterogeneous classes are 
indeed leaving students behind. 
What's frustrating is that some of 
them do not want to be left behind 
but have no choice because it's all 
brought down to the lowest level in 
the class.

The quality of education 
provided to every student.

There is a world beyond 
GPAs for colleges that 
needs to be considered. 
For example safe drivers 
get an insurance 
discount if they maintain 
a B average or better. 
Without lower level 
classes, it appears we 
are making car 
insurance costs higher 
for students who 
struggle to learn. 
Imagine a student who 
would get a B in a CP1 
class and is in that class 
due to learning 
challenges or less 
interest / engagement. 
Will that student receive 
a D, a C in the new 
single level that is not 
honors? We've now 
increased expenses 
significantly for that 
family, which may be a 
family that needs the 
student to drive to get to 
a job, to bring in money 
for the family.

(1) It really feels like you are experimenting with our 
children. It sounds like you plan to arrive at a place that is 
better for all, but it will take years to get there. I'm worried 
that my children's education will suffer as you test and learn 
and try to get this right. I'm happy for the families of young 
children who will benefit in years to come. Unfortunately, 
that's just not enough. If you have to do this now, educate 
your teachers more than you ever have, and support them 
in new ways. Watch for every issue, with every child, and 
address quickly. (2) If all ABRHS teachers were extremely 
effective at engaging multiple types of learners and 
students in a given class, I would be fully supportive of this 
approach. Based on experience, there are absolutely 
teachers who do not have the skills, tools to do this 
effectively. Why was there no discussion of teacher's 
learning how to do this in the presentation? (3) There's a 
stark difference between what you are proposing and group 
MBA work at Wharton. MBA at Wharton is the elite of the 
elite. It is the ultimate leveling, not de-leveled!!! Students 
who received high levels of support and challenge 
throughout all years of education to enable them to get into 
such a selective program very likely were not in de-leveled 
courses at AB.



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/21/2023 20:05:26
I was skeptical before the (Zoom) presentation, but now 
I'm pretty much on board.

Less decision and stress about which 
level their in, more engagement with 
diverse peers

Being bored, restless, and tuning out 
in subjects that are "easy" for them, 
such as math, with a more 
heterogenous group of students

Keep an eye on the boredom 
and/or resentment among 
high achievers who are then 
asked to mentor/teach their 
peers in group work; this 
was very socially awkward 
and frustrating for me when I 
was a teen

I hate grades and GPAs; 
I don't care one way or 
another what you do 
with them

I really appreciate the time and thought that's been put into 
these changes. As I mentioned above, I was skeptical 
about fewer levels, as a high achieving teen myself. I 
personally felt great relief when I went from unleveled 
(boring!) classes in middle school to leveled classes 
(appropriately challenging) in high school (in Concord). 
However, the rationales described for reducing levels made 
sense to me. I believe a greater diversity (of multiple types) 
in classes can be beneficial to all students -- especially in 
classes such as social studies and English. I can also see 
that various scaffolding and supports for kids who 
absolutely need them can also help kids who don't need 
them as much. I expect my current 7th grader to benefit 
from this. I am glad that the district is thinking about how to 
teach and support learning for today's world and how that 
has changed over time. My biggest caution would be to 
keep an eye on the kids on the tails -- the super-high-
achievers and those who need the most support. They may 
be the ones least served by reducing levels.

3/22/2023 10:51:59

I like the idea of helping all students level up and all 
students benefitting from different strategies and 
scaffoldings. My primary concern is that teachers be 
given enough resources to meet this goal.

I like the idea that there may be more 
flexibility to change levels during HS. I 
very much hope this is true. 

In general the rigid math tracking still 
seems to be a problem, even with 
these changes. 

To make sure you are 
getting better rep/equity in 
the Honors/AP classes. And 
to make sure teachers are 
getting adequate support to 
help all students “level up” 
and meet their potential. 

Scaffolding, strategies, and choice, should also be used in 
H/AP classes. Do not leave these classes out of this 
change, as it’s better pedagogically. Students with 
struggles is some areas, like ADHD or executive function, 
can also be incredibly smart and also deserve to be 
challenged appropriately and have access to H/AP. IEP 
and 504 plans shouldn’t keep students out of H/AP.

3/22/2023 11:31:35

I am concerned about the plan, as it seems to be putting 
students who are "in the middle" into less challenging 
courses.  None 

I am concerned that my student will 
not qualify for honors level classes, 
and due to lack of levels, be placed in 
a less rigorous class that is not the 
right fit.  I think this plan may be 
detrimental to my student, as I 
already am seeing the downsides of 
reduced levels of math for 8th 
graders.

Student satisfaction with the 
learning environment and 
appropriate rigor of classes. None at this point.

I am concerned about the math levels and the impact of 
having so many students taking math outside of school (i.e. 
Russian School of Math).  For kids who are strong students 
but do not take outside math, I am concerned about where 
these students will fit with the reduced levels.

3/22/2023 14:01:08

It sounds good but I haven't see any proof the reduction 
of course levels can improve, or at least not harm, the 
competitiveness of ABHS, which is one of the core 
reasons for parents like me to move to Acton. I am 
wondering how soon will it take for the school board to 
feel two levels are too many and we should reduce to 
one? Better collaboration and communication

Teachers need to spend more time 
and efforts on underperforming 
students, affecting the quality of the 
class, eventually and almost 
inevitably in my opinion, slip on 
course requirement to accommodate 
those students. High performing 
students either feel less pressured to 
excel, or distracted in class 
discussion, etc. to help others. 

You should have a 
measurable academic 
standard for each class, 
make it public to 
stakeholders, and 1. make 
sure the standard does not 
slip over time 2. measure 
students performance 
according to the standards, 
and use those data to justify 
reducing class levels actually 
helping students 
academically instead of 
harming them.  

whatever the majority of 
university will accept

ABHS is one of the most competitive schools in MA, the 
system works. Why we have to change? Why can't the 
school board provide data and other solid evidence to 
justify change? All I hear is students complain, other 
districts doing this, etc. In companies, we make decision 
based on statistics and revenues. At schools, do we have 
similar measure? 



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/22/2023 22:12:44

I do not support the deleveling plan. At its most basic 
definition it is worse for students because it offers less 
customized learning levels. I’m surprised with the broad 
learning deficits created by the COVID-19 pandemic that 
this proposal is being brought forth. You are essentially 
keeping an Honors/AP level and grouping three other 
levels into one. This is the current case with senior 
English which did not provide my AB alum an appropriate 
educational experience when he was a senior at AB. He 
went from AE level English as a Junior to unleveled as a 
Senior and the course content was not challenging and 
he did not feel that it advanced his learning.  The 
“evidence” in the community presentation does not 
support deleveling. A chart of demographic data from the 
Fall of 2022 attempted to explain deleveling’s value as 
an attempt to improve equity by comparing H/AP 
enrollment percentages to CP1 enrollment percentages 
for specific groups. In the presentation Principal Dean 
admits that special student groups (such as ML and 
FLEP learners and those on IEPs) are not removed from 
the racial and socio-economic groups presented. This 
tactic does not make sense unless one is trying to 
manipulate the data to tell a certain story. Why would 
groups whom are potentially more likely to experience 
learning challenges not be accounted for in the analysis? 
In addition, the CP1 population at the school as a whole 
is only 104 enrollments (2022-2023) compared with 
3,722 H/AP enrollments; thus, small numerical 
differences in the CP1 population are percentage-wise 
more dramatic simply due to the lower overall numbers. 
Additionally, some students on IEPs have conditions 
which impact their learning, and even with 
accommodations it is not a fair comparison to the 
learning readiness of “typical” students. In the Senior 
Survey Feedback only a few anecdotal comments were 
shared with the community. Why not share the full survey 
results? How many students completed the survey? How 
do they differ from students who did not complete the 
survey? Assessing bias in your results is critical since 
you are making policy decisions based on your survey. 
My student disagrees with the comments you shared and 
does not identify with any of the sentiments expressed in 
the anecdotes. Additionally, as per time management 
worksheets (used for junior high students as they enter 
high school to help select a balanced course load and 
understand homework time expectations), the Honors/AP 
levels courses have a significant amount of homework 
each night. It is logical that students who pursue a class 
schedule with many H/AP classes do not have time to 
interact with students in other class levels, not because 
of a conscious decision to exclude them but because 
they are simply too busy with schoolwork to engage 
them.  Eliminating an AE level course will cause students 
in that level to reach, and perhaps over reach, to 
Honors/AP, causing a situation of increased stress for 
students, not less. This is especially the case in 
mathematics where the honors level is a higher step up 
from AE than in other subjects. According to my student’
s counselor, the math department at the honor’s level 
purposefully constructs tests where time pressure is very 
intense, to the point where tests cannot be completed in 
the time allotted unless the student is able to complete 
the problems very quickly. (I was told this was a practice 
thought to be important because mathematical speed 
was critical professionally for engineering fields; this 
presumption is false and does not reflect how real 
engineers function in the workplace today. Please talk to 
some engineers and they will update you. The honors 
level should be challenging based on problem 
complexity, not on speed.) Eliminating levels in math will 
be particularly hurtful towards allowing students to learn 
at the best pace possible since the honors level is so 
intense. 

I do not see any opportunities in this 
plan for my student. 

I see many concerns for students for 
whom this plan will impact. That does 
not include my student. I’m sharing 
my concerns (see first question 
response) because I care about the 
impact on future AB students.

Stress and burnout in H/AP 
students. Inappropriate 
learning in the “everyone 
else” level; depending on 
how this level plays out, the 
former AE students will likely 
be bored and easily get As 
while other have to work 
hard for such grades or the 
former AE students will work 
for As and the CP students 
despite their efforts will only 
be able to get Bs or worse. I’
m very concerned that you 
will hurt the GPA, self-
esteem, college-acceptance 
ability of the CP students.  
Students learn best when 
they take the level that is 
right for them.

In your presentation it 
was stated that many 
colleges (64%) 
recalculate the WGPA, 
but the remaining 36% 
who do not is actually a 
significant number. In 
addition, there was no 
discussion of WGPAs 
use in awarding merit 
scholarships and for this 
reason alone WGPA is 
an important metric to 
keep. 
The proposed scales for 
the class of 2027 and 
after seems to adopt the 
current Honors scale 
and the current AE 
scale. This will raise the 
WGPA at AB across the 
board. The weighted 
difference across the 
levels though is 
potentially not reflective 
of the difference in 
workload across the 
levels which would be 
unfair.

Other school systems in our area offer more than two levels 
in their curriculum. For example, Lincoln-Sudbury offers 4 
levels in each of their core science courses (Earth Science, 
Biology, Chemistry, Physics) and Concord-Carlisle offers 3-
5 levels in Biology, Chemistry and Physics.



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/23/2023 10:28:04

I am not certain that students in CP1 and CP could 
handle the rigor of a higher level classes.  I am afraid 
students will be frustrated and upset and perhaps act out 
when frustrated..

Students in CP1/CP classes have an 
opportunity to go up to higher classes. 
Some of these students have been put 
in these classes for a reason.  It 
depends of the student and their 
willingness to learn and take on more 
responsibility without bringing down 
their peers.  

Students in AE classes only receive a 
grade that holds the same weight as 
a CP class.  It is obviously to all that 
AE Students are working at an 
Honors level and should be graded 
as such.  Math & English courses

During your presentation 
you noted that Colleges 
will be calculating their 
own GPA's from the 
grades submitted.  I 
think the GPA points 
should be higher in all 
courses of study. 

3/23/2023 16:58:29

Course Leveling Plan seems very confusing and the 
impacts of this leveling are not clear. It is creating lot of 
anxiety and confusion both amongst parents and 
students

The only opportunity I see is that we are 
enabling kids taking non AP/H courses 
to get higher weighted GPA

Bigger class size with varied groups 
of students who are not at the same 
level, students who cannot tackle 
AP/H courses don't have any 
intermediate option and have to fall 
back to the only other option. 

You need to carefully watch 
for no of students who are 
struggling and dropping off 
from AP/H courses. Impact 
this will have on college 
admissions and ensure 
colleges are recalculating 
correctly

I think I understand it but 
it would be helpful if you 
can provide more 
information by providing 
specific examples of 
hypothetical students 
and their grade journey 
over 4 years. People 
who have not gone 
through the school 
system here might not 
get it and it will be good 
to level set with 
everyone. I still don't 
know enough to 
understand what 
impacts it will have on 
students - will they be 
de-moralized, will their 
college applications be 
impacted and biggest 
concern is we don't 
know what we don't 
know.

Can you please share data on 36% of colleges which don't 
recalculate the GPA? We want AB school district to be a 
competitive school district where families come because 
they want the best for their kids in terms of academic 
excellence and best college opportunities. This is what I 
don't hear at all and that has started to concern me. Please 
share how many of our AB students get into Ivy League 
and other Top 20 colleges and how will this leveling impact 
those Ivy league admissions. If people want to target 
UMass and North Eastern they can go to any other school 
district in the state and still get admissions there. What is it 
that differentiates AB? What differentiates is that AB 
competes neck-in-neck with Lexington in both Math and 
Science competitions, what differentiates is that AB kids are 
enrolled in prestigious programs like MIT Step program and 
not because some kids feel not included with kids in AP/H 
courses. I hope that's not the only rationale to level up 
these courses. Please start focusing on academic 
excellence and teach our kids to aim for the stars. Think 
about how you would like AB to addressed in a press 
release, what is AB's North Star in terms of academic, 
sports and extra-curricular excellence. The talent pool you 
get here is one of the best and you should make them 
realize their full potential. 



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/24/2023 22:32:12

It feels to me that, while you are asking the questions 
and saying you want community involvement, the 
decisions have already been made, and I find that 
disappointing.  You have already piloted this for the 
Freshmen this year and have things already in motion for 
future years before asking for community feedback.  It 
makes me feel like you are going to move forward with 
this no matter what the community feedback.

We have been in this school system for 
a long time and have gone through five 
principals now, I believe.  When we first 
arrived, I was unhappy that my students 
could not opt to take an AP class unless 
they had an A the previous year in an 
AE level class.  I feel there are greater 
opportunities for students to access 
high level classes, if they wish, under 
the new program, and that's a good 
thing.  The system feels less rigid, and 
that's a positive.

I have a LOT of concerns about the 
proposed changes.  We have lived in 
many countries over the years (4) 
and have seen a lot of different 
educational systems.  We particularly 
liked what we saw in Germany.  
Students, at a young age, were put in 
class levels suited to their aptitudes 
which allowed the best learning and 
growth for them individually - 
regardless of age.  There was no 
stigma associated with being held 
back a grade or being placed in a 
class that was going at a slower 
pace.  Going into training for a trade 
was considered as honorable and 
necessary for society as being 
trained to be a doctor.  It really 
opened my eyes.  

Upon returning to the States, we 
were very happy there was leveling 
at this High School and it was one of 
the reasons we chose this 
community.  It allowed my kids, by 
subject, to get in classes where 
lessons were tailored to where they 
were academically and helped them 
learn and progress.  Some of my kids 
took Honors classes and CP classes 
in the same term - depending on their 
strengths (or weaknesses) in the 
particular subject.  It allowed access 
to learning at their level and provided 
for the most growth and 
development.

After seeing some of the different 
educational systems in other parts of 
the world, my takeaway was that the 
U.S. system of "inclusion" for 
everyone is a disservice for 
everyone.  In the U.S., our best and 
brightest are held back (and 
frequently frustrated out of their 
minds) as teachers teach to the 
lowest common denominator trying to 
pull everyone forward together.  In an 
AE or Honors class, they can 
introduce concepts that the class can 
quickly grab and move forward - 
keeping students with higher 
aptitudes engaged and training their 
minds.  We waste precious years of 
learning - and a lot of their time - 
trying to level the playing field.  

After we raised our own kids, we took 
in some ethnically diverse kids and I 
have now had the opportunity to see 
what the "flattened" playing field does 
to them too.  In the leveled classes 
(CP1) they had the support they 
needed to be successful and feel 
good about themselves and their 
progress - and they were being 
taught at a level where they COULD 
learn and progress.  When they 
participated in unleveled classes, 
they received a LOT of support 
(which was incredible - you did a 
fantastic job as a school), but finding 
success was a LOT more difficult, 
and they were much more aware that 
they were less capable than 
classmates, and were frequently 
frustrated and discouraged.  

I do not believe that taking this school 
to a two level system does anyone a 
favor - it makes AB just like a 
thousand other high schools out 
there.  It will take away part of what 
makes AB unique - and a sought 
after school system.  I could go into a 
lot more reasons why I think this is a 
bad idea for the students, but I've 
already written a novel, and I hate to 
say it, but I doubt that anything I've 
said is going to change anyone's 
minds anyway because it seems to 
me, you've already made up your 
minds long before you asked for 
community input.

Test scores.  I found it 
interesting that for both the 
CP1 learners and the 
general school population, 
you reported an overall 
decrease in grade 
percentages - if I understood 
your presentation correctly.  
It wasn't a drastic change - a 
1% drop for each group if I 
remember correctly, but a 
drop none-the-less.  If you 
read my comments above, I 
think that is what you are 
going to see - you will see a 
drop in learning for both 
groups.  Please continue to 
watch test scores and 
percentages over time.  If 
this is truly a better 
approach, there should be 
better learning / testing 
outcomes, not drops, but 
unfortunately for both the top 
students and the bottom 
students, I think you are 
going to see worse 
outcomes over time.  For the 
middle of the pack, I would 
expect test scores to remain 
the same.

The universities we have 
applied to do not use 
WPGA - they have 
recalculated all GPA's, 
so this is not something 
I'm concerned about.



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/25/2023 7:47:24

It is obvious that the administration has put a LOT of 
thought, research, effort and energy into this proposal.  I 
appreciate the fact that you are asking for community 
feedback, but it feels like you are trying to sell a decision 
already made more than you are truly considering 
feedback.  After you have made your presentations to 
parents, students & teachers, would you be willing to put it 
to a simple vote to all three groups?  Listening to questions 
and answers, it didn't sound to me like anyone was saying 
they thought this was a positive change - parents, teachers 
or alum. 

There are advantages and disadvantages to any approach 
to education.  I feel you are addressing some of the 
problems - like greater flexibility for movement between 
levels, which would be a welcome change from some of 
inflexibility of the past - but are creating new ones that 
overall will result in worse outcomes for more students than 
it will benefit. 

I think if you put these changes to a simple vote with 
parents, teachers and students, none of those groups 
would vote to make the changes you are proposing.  Are 
you truly listening?  

Thank you for asking - please listen to the responses you 
are getting from the communities you serve.

3/26/2023 10:57:54

Roughly to which level would the new curriculum match 
with the existing levels? For example, will the new level 
be matched to the current curriculum's CP1, CP or to 
AE?

The current levelling system gives the 
kids much more opportunities than the 
new leveling system. So I feel there is 
lower opportunity in the new system. 

The new levelling appears to put 
more pressure on the kids who want 
to take more higher level courses. 
Previously, there was AE level 
course to fall back to. Now they have 
to fall back to a much lower level 
course than AE. Will the second level 
match up to the current AE?

You mentioned that some 
colleges gave you feedback 
on the new leveling and 
some did not. While it is 
great that the school district 
is open to modifying as you 
learn more about the new 
leveling, my child would be 
in the phase of 
experimentation, which is not 
ideal when they graudate. 
How are You planning on 
helping these batches in the 
interim. It is important that it 
their batches dont become 
and experient for the school 
district.     Multiple levels 
have been there for years 
now. The main reason given 
for the change seems to be 
help CP1/CP level kids move 
up, which is fair. But the 
multiple levels have been 
present all the years, why 
has the school district not 
helped the CP1 level kids 
move up and how are you 
ensuring that the new 
leveling scheme helps this? 

I am worried about 
weighted GPA. Only 
after a few years of 
watching graduating 
class, would we know 
how really colleges view 
the new levels - because 
colleges re-calculate 
weighted GPA based on 
the way they see the 
levels. I am afraid that 
this change could 
negatively impact my 
child and I might be 
navigating the hard 
college admission 
process without good 
previous data that the 
previous graduating 
classes had, about the 
school district. 

3/26/2023 11:51:57
Disappointed that lowering the academic standards is 
being considered. None

Hoping that this "plan" will not be 
implemented

The people whontvto 
implement lowering 
academic standards should 
be looking for a new job,.

This is a very poor 
proposal.

Very disappointed the "leadership" is seriously considering 
lowering academic standards at AB.  AB will become less 
relevant. Future students will seek a more challenging 
private school or charter school. A decline in the quality of 
life in the town of Acton will continue.  Acton should be a 
beacon and magnet for excellence not become just another 
place where mediocracy is taught.



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/26/2023 14:34:40

I understand the thought process of trying to create a 
more inclusive academic environment at the school 
however, removing the AE level (and only offering 2 
levels in some departments)  is going to create an EVEN 
bigger divide between the students. It is going to create 
even more pressure as the kids already know that in 
order to show colleges you took a rigorous course load, 
the will feel pressured to take an AP class.  I do not feel 
a 9th grader should be allowed to take an AP science 
class.  You should only be able to take an AP class once 
you have proven your self AT the HS level.  Removing 
the AE level is a mistake. 

I see opportunities for more stress and 
self imposed pressure.  My student 
feels like if they take an un-leveled class 
they will be in class with kids who learn 
at a slower pace, which will impact their 
learning.  They also feel that colleges 
will think they didn't challenge 
themselves. So if they try to push 
themselves and take all higher level 
classes,  it is also harder to manage all 
Honors and AP classes.

In unleveled classes how will 
teachers teach to the many different 
levels of learning that are in their 
class room?  This burden should not 
fall on the student mentors,  THEY 
ARE STUDENTS WITH NO 
TEACHING BACKGROUNDS!  Will 
you have multiple teachers in the un 
leveled classrooms to help with the 
different styles.  What will happen to 
those students who would flurish in 
the AE level, they will either be held 
back if they stay in the "signature" 
level class or they will take an 
honors/AP class that they may not be 
able to handle and if this student 
drops down, will there be room for 
them to get into the lower level class?   
How will this impact a weighted 
GPA?  if you only take 1 or 2 honors 
classes, your weighted GPA would 
be grossly mis-interpreted as it would 
only encompass 2 classes vs the un-
weighted GPA which does not give 
any higher weight or credit to taking a 
higher level class.  I know you all say 
that colleges re-calculate GPA but 
what does that say to the students 
about the classes they are taking at 
AB

Mental health of the 
students, the amount of 
HOURS spent on work 
outside of the class room on 
school work.  Varsity 
athletes have very 
demanding schedules and 
some take heavy course 
loads.  How will they 
manage the workload.  Lots 
of sports have multiple 
games a week, and travel, 
and get home pretty late, 
Basketball being one of 
them, Baseball games can 
go pretty long just as track 
meets.  Volleyball all travels 
on 1 bus so you have all 
those kids staying for all 
away games.  Coaches 
make demands that you stay 
and support the entire 
program at both home and 
away games.  They don't 
care how much homework a 
student has.  They tell them 
to figure it out, this is 
preparing you for the real 
world.  Perhaps you should 
allow varsity sports to opt out 
of Gym if they are earning a 
letter, which would allow for 
a free period during the day.  
I know other schools do not 
have a PE requirement for 
varsity players.  PC and 
Marching Band are also very 
demanding schedules as 
well.

I have no comment as I 
do not have an 8th 
grader but I feel badly as 
if you do not take an 
Honors AP class your 
gpa will not be reflected, 
but you will be inflating 
GPA's by having all 
"specialized" or un-
leveled classes have the 
weight of the current AE 
classes so good for AB!

I think that change is hard for all involved but I also think 
that AB already being an academic pressure cooker, this 
change is just adding more DIVISION and more fuel to the 
fire.  If an honors class is now the middle level class, say 
for science, you now have AP, H, and un-leveled, is the 
honors level now going to be run at an AE pace/level and 
be dumbed down? I am thinking probably not  Is the un-
leveled class going to be made harder - how can it be 
because you will have CP learners in this class.  How will 1 
teacher be able to teach to the different levels of learning 
styles in their classroom.  I also find it interesting that AB 
now is going to force all kids to take Calc by 12th grade 
with making all kids in 8th grade take Algebra 1. I am 
thinking that you realize that colleges are looking for all kids 
to take Calc in 12th grade. I know that this path is decided 
at the end of 7th grade, which is so sad...but when my 7th 
grader was being recommended for their 8th grade math 
class the teacher did not recommend them for Algebra 1 so 
they lost out on that opportunity, because the way around is 
to now DOUBLE up and take 2 math classes, which is 
extremely challenging and not something I want for my 
students mental health.  

3/26/2023 18:01:23
I think the changes in the leveling is an embarrassment 
to the Acton school district.   

I do not see opportunities in the 
changes besides added stress. 

Students are being forced to choose 
between just two or three levels, 
meanwhile the school contains 
almost 2,000 kids. If you think 2,000 
children with different needs and 
choices are able to fit in just two 
levels, you are mistaken and should 
reconsider your voice making 
decisions on the behalf of others. 

The high school needs to 
watch peoples reactions. I 
have yet to meet one person 
(who is actually affected) 
that is happy with this 
change. 

Again, an 
embarrassment to the 
school district. People 
come to Acton for 
education, including its 
diversity in levels so 
their children can get the 
help and work load 
healthy for them. 

I think it's quite rich that the school directors are making 
hasty, harmful, and unwanted decisions based on this so-
called equity issue, then go back to their million dollar 
homes. I genuinely think administrators are over their 
heads and simply want to be a savior for poor people. We 
don't need you. 

3/27/2023 9:27:30 I don't agree with it.
To be honest, I don't see any 
opportunities only downsides.

I really dislike the idea that you seem 
to be encouraging the idea that a 
student's first attempt at a course 
should be at the AP level (eg Env 
science, chem, bio etc.).  AP stands 
for Advanced Placement and 
therefore should be taken as a follow-
up course to an intro course.  I 
understand that you want to increase 
the number of students taking AP 
courses, or at least claim on official 
stats that you are doing so, but this 
will inevitably lead to higher drop out 
rates and/or less students able to get 
4's or 5's because they don't have 
time to do all the material at the 
necessary depth.  As a college 
science educator who sees the 
results of these types of policies this 
is a very bad idea, and it does not set 
up students for success in college-
level science.

As the college's 
recalculate this anyway 
it doesn't seem like a big 
deal.



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/27/2023 10:28:56 It
Students are given opportunities to do 
AP level courses earlier than it’s now

All science AP level classes are only 
taught 1 year . Concerned if the 
science curriculum can be covered in 
one year 

Because it’s only 2 levels the 
students might want to take 
higher level course and 
might have mental stress 
issues

Does this overall 
improve WGPA for all 
students?? 

Do colleges will have understanding of the changes 
happening in AB and it’s impact in a positive way ?? 

3/27/2023 14:56:36

I am concerned about several features of the changes 
described.  I attentively listened and participated in the 
Zoom webinar and reviewed the FAQs and slides later.  
First, it is disturbing that community input was not sought 
earlier in this process.  I think trying to merge a wider 
range of abilities in one classroom will be very difficult for 
teachers and within a class of 30 students, there will be a 
more pronounced range of abilities without in-class 
support.  It seems like a 1-room schoolhouse idea, which 
will mean the students who are more challenged will get 
a greater fraction of the teacher's attention and better 
students will need to be more self-motivated to avoid 
being "bored with school."  More importantly, I think it is a 
HUGE mistake to set up a system where students are 
even offered an *ADVANCED* course in a discipline they 
have never studied, at even a basic level, so the science 
curriculum is especially problematic.  Encouraging a 
student to take an AP class before he/she has had a 
survey course sets them up for increased stress and 
problems.  Moreover, when a class consists of a mix of 
students who have had the survey course, and some 
who have not, the pace of teaching is inherently divided.  
A (partially) mitigating strategy may be to have several 
smaller sections of courses with the same course title 
(perhaps adding the current AE sections to H sections 
under the new "H" system, perhaps - which "levels up"), 
but that doesn't entirely solve the issue.  Perhaps using a 
placement exam at the beginning of the year (or end of 
the prior one - like a final exam) could help objectively 
sort students to create sections that are more 
homogeneous according to ability (rather than the 
demographic groups or unintentional bias created by 
prior class levels).  In each year of 400 or so students, it 
is of course highly unlikely that any 1 student will be 
friends with, or even know, many of their classmates, 
*regardless* of their academic level, so I don't think that 
type of student feedback is instructive.  

Frankly, I don't see many academic 
opportunities for either of my students.  
There is absolutely no way I would 
encourage either one to take an AP 
science without a survey course first 
(with the possible exception of 
environmental science since it is 
inherently more interdisciplinary).  As 
long as there are enough H sections 
every year, (that is, if the number of H 
sections is increased to accommodate 
the loss of the AE level), I think my 
students will be in mostly H sections for 
the core subjects.  

One of my students needed to 
transition after 1 quarter of an honors 
math to the AE version of that 
course.  That was JUST the right 
"downgrade" for her - it kept her 
challenged at a good pace for her.  
She went from a C in the honors to 
an A+ in the AE section.  Without that 
gentle decrease in level, she would 
have dropped to the CP level, where 
she still would most likely have been 
in the A+ zone but with a huge drop 
in pace and content.  With fewer 
levels, there will be less shuffling 
around after quarter 1, and I think 
that's a problem.  If you really want to 
encourage students to "push 
themselves" by trying a higher level 
class, they need to know there is a 
place to fall back on that is still a 
challenge.  I foresee class sizes 
optimized at the beginning of a year, 
the after the realization that students 
are struggling, they will need to move 
to a lower level, and that will now be 
more frowned upon, since it will result 
in class sizes in lower level classes 
that are too large.  

1-Rates of early dropping to 
a lower level, 2-grades and 
external test results across 
sections of a level (ie have 
all teachers of a level draft 
exams and quizzes 
TOGETHER, then give the 
single exam/assessment to 
all sections and respond to 
differences in performance 
according to 
section/teacher), 3-AP exam 
performance (not just class 
enrollment), 4-maintaining 
cross-grade elective 
offerings (that is REALLY 
where cross-level, cross-
cultural, and cross-academic 
social development 
happens!!).  5-Seek parent 
feedback directly and 
frequently and the metric 
could be parent-reported 
student behavior or mood 
outside of school. Student 
evaluations are not very 
useful, because they can't 
put content pacing into 
context.

Even the current 
weighting system works 
against students who 
are focused on the arts - 
what AP options are 
there for them?  There 
are 3 available AP 
exams in the arts and 
ABRHS offers none of 
them.  They will be the 
"other" category in either 
system.  Core-level 
classes in the "special" 
departments (English, 
Math, Science, Social 
Studies, & World 
Languages) are given 
greater weight than a 
core-level class in any of 
the arts. It's not clear to 
me who you're trying to 
compare the ABRHS 
students against in the 
new weighting system - 
across or within a 
district? Are you trying to 
say that a core class at 
AB (4.5 for an A) is 
worth more than a core 
class from another 
school system (4 for an 
A)?  It only comes 
across to me as showing 
that a core class in one 
of the 5 departments 
above is worth more 
than a core class in the 
arts within the school.  If 
the whole point of the 
leveling exercise is to 
decrease levels to 2, 
then why do you have 3 
levels for weighting?  
Just make the H/AP A 
worth 5 (and use that 
column) and make an A 
in anything else worth 4 
(and down that column).

If you must "offer" AP science classes to students without a 
survey course, I hope you strongly discourage anyone 
(regardless of year) from taking them without a placement 
exam.  You can level out performance by offering students 
in the same level, regardless of the teaching section, the 
same exam.  That is "real world" right there.  

3/27/2023 21:48:59

3/27/2023 23:37:10
Anything to take away the stress.  I think you have 
created undue stress with your Hons/AE programs I see a fairer approach.  It's too late for us.  I have a junior.

I think your weighting has 
been 'off' for years.  A B in 
Hons is seen as failure.       

Again, too late for us.  
Meanwhile our students 
miss out on universities 
because of your unfair 
weighting to date.

I think I've said everything. The horrible academic pressure 
with very little or no focus on community spirit means 
ABRHS is where fun (and learning actually) goes to die. 
Where are your spring dances? Grade level FUN (non 
academic) get togethers?  Travel opportunities (now we 
have a bit more flexibility with Covid)? Field trips (even local 
ones)?  etc.? 



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

3/27/2023 23:50:48

When I first heard the presentation, I liked it, especially if 
it instills the confidence kids need to succeed, but the 
more we talked about it over as a family, the more we 
disliked it. I think a better approach might be to keep the 
different levels, placing children accordingly, but to offer 
more ways to move in/out of a level, and mid-year. 
Perhaps CP classes should be smaller in size, with more 
adults to assist the teacher. This could ensure kids could 
move up when they have mastered the material or 
mastered great study habits. In the long run, Though the 
intention is great, I don't believe kids will feel good for 
very long, if they are placed in a class where they can't 
keep up. I think it will actually slow down their learning 
and the desired love of learning. None. 

My kids take their studies very 
seriously. They work through 
weekends, vacations, etc. It can be 
unfair to ask hard working students to 
carry group work or group projects 
when others are not interested in the 
desired outcome or grade. Also, it 
can be difficult for a teacher to 
manage such a wide range of 
learning. You'll have some kids 
struggling to keep up, while others 
will be bored and getting themselves 
in trouble. Overall, I believe the 
outcome will result in very disruptive 
classes that will not be able to move 
in unison, whatever the level. I 
foresee a lot of unnecessary mental 
stress on the teachers, which will 
inevitability spew over onto the very 
children you are trying to make feel 
better about themselves.

Group projects should be 
supervised. It's not like an 
office environment full of 
adults, where bonuses 
depend on group work. If 
unsupervised, these can 
lead to a lot of conflict 
between teens, because as 
no two people have the 
same ambitions in life and 
grades may not be as 
important to some as others. 
(2) The mental stress it will 
put on teachers teaching to 
such a wide range, and (3) 
survey the kids often, to see 
if (a) they can keep up or (b) 
they are bored and would 
prefer to go at a faster pace.

Seems OK. If we were to 
be honest, it's probably 
easier to get a 4.0 
anywhere in the country 
besides MA, so why 
not?

While I admire what you are working on, it seems to be too 
little, too late. I think the education of GPA, SAT, CP, AP,  
leveling, etc should start for parents when their kids are in 
elementary school. I don't believe that pressure should be 
put on kids at that age, but it's pretty hard on minorities, 
underrepresented groups, immigrants and any other group 
who have not been through the American College system 
to learn later on that the math track their kid gets placed on 
after 7th grade, determines their college outlook. If you took 
the time to educate parents and kids of what lies ahead, I 
believe you would not need to find ways help kids deal with 
the emotions of being in a CP class later on. From personal 
experience, finding out how all of these levels play out for 
college in 11th grade is too late. Educate parents that 
Engineering needs Calculus, as does Business, Computer 
Science, etc., then offer the catch up support needed (in 
elementary and middle schools). 

The math classes offered by the HS kids is a great idea. If 
this could be expanded, and made available over zoom, 
with an option to stay anonomous for those who are too 
embarrassed to seek out help, it might have a greater 
reach:
Kids who might benefits of a nightly monitored email 
address or zoom address:
(1) kids who's parents are working late (2) kids who's late 
bus stop is too far away, especially in winter (3) those who 
are embarrassed to show up for help (4) those who get 
stuck with just one question during homework and need 
only 5 minutes of help. Providing a zoom service to parents 
of elementary students would also help as many parents 
cannot afford the RSM, and others do not understand 
Common Core math. If you can help kids earlier, I believe 
you will have the desired outcome of making lifelong 
learners feel great about their accomplishments. 

3/28/2023 15:47:39

Had to take all Hon classes for all 
subjects. There is only one other  
choice left for students

Colleges asks and 
opportunities given to the 
students

Just 2 levels(Hon and all 
others) is not the best 
idea. 

3/29/2023 16:08:40

I don’t think research supports this. I read some of the 
research links you provided and look for more 
information myself. I don’t believe that a school district 
similar to ours has implemented this and found it to be 
successful. I believe it will be harmful to our neediest 
students. And not help any students.

There are no new opportunities for my 
student.

I am concerned that my student will 
not be appropriately challenged. And 
if they reach to be more challenged in 
an honors course, I am worried that 
they will be overwhelmed.

If this is actually helping any 
students. I am also curious 
what you are doing to 
encourage more white 
students to take honors 
courses. I understand those 
students are 
disproportionately Asian. So 
we need more white 
students, along with those 
other students that you have 
targeted with this 
intervention to join those 
courses.

My child will be a 
freshman next year and 
is currently registered for 
an AE geometry. I can 
see that there will also 
be an honors geometry 
course and a CP 
geometry course. So if 
my child is receiving 4.5 
GPA credits for this 
course, then they will be 
getting the same as 
someone in the CP 
course. Which is not fair. 
I imagine they will get 
4.75… But that is not 
listed in your proposal.  
If this is the case, then 
they may choose to 
move down. So I hope 
you clarify this.

I believe you should put this plan on hold. And gain learning 
from other districts, and from our first years of doing this 
before you push it through the other grades.

4/1/2023 5:19:01
burn out snd mental health 
struggles



Timestamp
Please share your thoughts about the High School 
Course Leveling Plan.

What opportunities do you see in this 
plan for your student?

What concerns do you see in this 
plan for your student?

As the high school 
evaluates and assesses 
this plan over time, what 
do you think we should 
watch carefully?

What are your 
thoughts about the 
proposed GPA and 
WPGA scales for the 
Class of 2027 and 
after? Please share any additional thoughts you have.

4/1/2023 16:55:38

I want to express my strong opposition to the proposed 
changes in the high school course levels. As a 
concerned citizen and a parent of a student attending 
Acton-Boxborough Regional High School, I strongly 
believe that the proposed changes will have a negative 
impact on the education and future of our students.  The 
proposed changes aim to reduce the advanced level 
courses and replace them with fewer single level courses 
for all students. While this may seem like a fair and equal 
approach, it fails to recognize the different abilities, skills, 
and interests of students. The advanced level courses 
provide an opportunity for high-achieving students to 
challenge themselves, learn at a faster pace, and 
prepare for college-level courses. Removing these 
courses will limit the opportunities for these students and 
may lead to disinterest and disengagement from 
learning. Additionally, students who struggle with certain 
subjects may find the new coursework too challenging 
and become discouraged, leading to decreased 
motivation and potential dropouts.  Furthermore, the 
proposed changes may also negatively impact the 
college admission process for our students. College 
admission officers look for rigorous and challenging 
courses on a student's transcript, and eliminating 
advanced level courses may put our students at a 
disadvantage compared to students from other schools 
who have taken these courses.  I urge you to reconsider 
the proposed changes and take into account the impact 
they will have on the education and future of our 
students. Instead of reducing the advanced level 
courses, we should focus on improving access and 
equity to these courses and provide additional support to 
students who need it.  Thank you for your attention to 
this important matter.

I do not see opportunities at all. This 
approach is a disservice to our students 
who have worked hard to achieve 
academic excellence and are looking for 
opportunities to challenge themselves.

The proposed changes aim to reduce 
the advanced level courses and 
replace them with fewer single level 
courses for all students. While this 
may seem like a fair and equal 
approach, it fails to recognize the 
different abilities, skills, and interests 
of students. The advanced level 
courses provide an opportunity for 
high-achieving students to challenge 
themselves, learn at a faster pace, 
and prepare for college-level 
courses. Removing these courses 
will limit the opportunities for these 
students and may lead to disinterest 
and disengagement from learning. 
Additionally, students who struggle 
with certain subjects may find the 
new coursework too challenging and 
become discouraged, leading to 
decreased motivation and potential 
dropouts.

Furthermore, the proposed changes 
may also negatively impact the 
college admission process for our 
students. College admission officers 
look for rigorous and challenging 
courses on a student's transcript, and 
eliminating advanced level courses 
may put our students at a 
disadvantage compared to students 
from other schools who have taken 
these courses.

1. To recognize the different 
abilities, skills, and interests 
of students. 2. impact the 
college admission process 
for our students. 

While this proposed changes may seem like a fair and 
equal approach, it fails to recognize the different abilities, 
skills, and interests of students.

4/3/2023 10:51:06

Keeping additional levels (AE) provide choice to 
students, especially for students who fall in the middle of 
the spectrum

Fewer choices, can't try out levels 
without pressure

New plan will narrow choices and 
force kids to either choose higher or 
lower

Students doing considerably 
well in CP and/or not so well 
in H/AP N/A

Overall taking away choices doesn't bridge the gap, but 
increases it. Also, forces students to make hard choices, 
especially if they fall in the middle of the spectrum



 Acton-Boxborough Regional School Committee 
 Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

 MEETING DATE  4-13-2023  AGENDA ITEM NUMBER  4.a 

 AGENDA ITEM TITLE  FY24 Budget & Staffing Update 

 PRESENTER(S)  Peter Light 

 SUMMARY OF TOPIC  FY Budget Update:  The administration will present an update on the FY24 budget. 
 The administration requests that the committee consider adding 2 additional 
 sections of kindergarten based on enrollment to date.  The administration is also 
 requesting consideration for an Assistant Director of Special Education to be 
 funded through Circuit Breaker offset.  These requests would increase the 
 previously voted FY24 budget, but would require the committee to revote the line 
 item budget to account for these changes. 

 WHAT ACTION (if any) DO YOU WISH SCHOOL COMMITTEE TO TAKE? 

 No action requested - this is a short update or presentation of information 

 Request input and questions from the School Committee, but no vote required 

 X  Request formal action with a specific vote: 

 If formal action is requested, is this item being presented: 

 for the first time, with a request that the School Committee vote at a subsequent meeting or 

 X  with the request that the School Committee take action immediately 

 If formal action is requested, include a suggested motion or contact Julie LaLumiere. 

 APPROX AGENDA TIME  15 mins. 

 FOLLOW-UP 

 ATTACHMENTS  Memo from Peter Light, 
 Memo from Jennifer Truslow, 
 Executive Summary of Program Evaluation, 
 Draft Job Description, 
 Revised Line Item Budget (posted separately on website) 

 To develop engaged, well-balanced learners through collaborative, caring relationships. 
 WELLNESS  •  EQUITY  •  ENGAGEMENT 



Acton-Boxborough Regional School District
15 Charter Road Acton, MA 01720

978-264-4700
www.abschools.org

Peter J. Light

Superintendent of Schools

To: Acton Boxborough Regional School Committee

From: Peter Light, Superintendent of Schools

Date: April 7, 2023

RE: FY24 Budget, Staffing Update and Request

The school committee voted to adopt its final budget on March 16, 2023. The purpose of this memo is to

update you on staffing with respect to Kindergarten and to seek approval for an additional position in special

education to be funded outside of the budget. We are requesting the school committee revote the line item

budget as presented. The changes described below have been incorporated into this revised line item budget.

Should the committee not wish to proceed with any of the proposed positions, the committee could consider

amending the motion to approve the line item budget reduced by the requests below. In that case, any

additional funds would be added to the substitute budget.

Suggested Motion: To approve the line item budget as presented in the packet with the stipulation that the
total budget and assessments remain unchanged from the committee final budget vote on March 16, 2023.

Two (2) Additional Kindergarten Sections

Since the adoption of the final budget for FY24, the district has completed the Kindergarten registration

process. Upon closing of registration prior to the school placement lottery, we have seen an increase in the

number of K students beyond what was anticipated. In our budget, we planned for 15 sections of Kindergarten

classrooms. To date, we have 319 students registered for Kindergarten. Maintaining only 15 sections of K

would result in Kindergarten classes that average 21.2 students, which is beyond school committee guidelines.

We also anticipate that we will continue to add students throughout the summer and believe it is necessary at

this time to add two additional sections of Kindergarten for FY24. Adding this position now will allow us to

ensure we have high quality educators in classrooms. These classrooms will be added to the McCarthy-Towne

and Conant schools to allow them to each have three sections of Kindergarten.

The NET budgetary impact of this addition is $132K, but does not increase the total district budget. This

includes the cost of the teachers and full time assistants. These positions are benefits eligible and the district

would incur possible additional costs for health insurance. These costs are partially offset by ADK tuition.

Because the district cannot increase its operating budget once the school committee votes on its final budget

for Town Meetings, the cost of these additional staff has been incorporated into the existing budget and other

line items have been adjusted accordingly. The positions are funded through attrition of veteran staff who

have notified us since our last meeting that they will be leaving the district. Because the NET cost of this

To develop engaged, well-balanced learners through collaborative, caring relationships.

WELLNESS ● EQUITY ● ENGAGEMENT

http://www.abschools.org


position has been included in the FY24 Budget, there is no impact to the FY25 Budget beyond the increased

challenge of funding tuition-free ADK.

We are seeking your approval of the additional staff positions as part of the requested revote of the FY24 line

item budget.

Assistant Director of Special Education

This year, the district conducted a program review of special education leadership over concerns that our

current structure could not adequately support the number of new special education programs created to

allow students to continue to be served in our district. The executive summary of the program review is

included in the packet along with a memorandum from Jennifer Truslow, Director of Special Education.

The program review identified additional leadership needed in the area of special education.

Recommendations included an additional coordinator at the elementary level focused on the autism programs,

as well as additional leadership support in both the junior high school and high school. After discussions with

the consultants and our leadership team, I am requesting the School Committee approve an Assistant Director

of Special Education for the FY24 school year.

If approved, the Assistant Director will support a variety of functions within the special education department

and will have two major areas of responsibility:

● Supporting effective program development across the elementary schools including Pathways

(Blanchard), Connections (Conant), Compass (McCarty-Towne) and the LABB (Douglas) programs.

● Support the management of complex student cases at the elementary level.

● Helping to improve special education processes and consistency of services across all elementary

schools.

After much discussion, I believe that adding the Assistant Director position focused on elementary levels will

allow Ms. Truslow increased opportunity to support district-wide needs as well as the junior high school and

high school programs.

The estimated cost for this position is $120,000 plus benefits. We are proposing that this position be funded

without increasing the operating budget for either one or possibly two years through the use of additional

circuit breaker reserve to offset additional out-of-district tuition. By funding this position through an

appropriate Circuit Breaker offset, we will not impact either the FY25 and possibly the FY26 budgets.

Attached, please find a memorandum from Jennifer Truslow, Director of Special Education with additional

details about the position, as well as a job description for this new role.

We are seeking your approval to add this position without increasing the FY24 Operating Budget by using

Circuit Breaker funds .

To develop engaged, well-balanced learners through collaborative, caring relationships.
WELLNESS • EQUITY • ENGAGEMENT



Summary of Changes to the Line Item Budget (since March 16, 2023):

➢ There are no changes to the final FY24 Operating Budget, Revenues, or Assessments.

➢ Incorporated 2 additional Kindergarten teaching positions and 2 Kindergarten assistant positions into

the personnel budget. These positions were funded through a combination of anticipated ADK tuition

and staff attrition realized between March 16, 2023 and present.

➢ Incorporated the request for an Assistant Director of Special Education into the personnel budget by

reducing special education OOD tuitions that will now be funded through increased use of Circuit

Breaker Reserve.

➢ We also made one technical change. Historically, we have used the federal aid for special education

known as the IDEA grant to fund special education assistants. For accounting purposes, we will budget

that grant to pay for special education transportation instead of staff, because it is easier to track. As a

result, the CASE transportation line item has gone down by $1.3 million, and the support staff line item

previously budgeted through the grant, has gone up by $1.3 million. There is no net effect to the

bottom line of the budget. This increases the NET FTE paid for through the operating budget, but there

is no actual change to the number of staff in the district.

Suggested Motion: To approve the line item budget as presented in the packet with the stipulation that the
total budget and assessments remain unchanged from the committee final budget vote on March 16, 2023.

To develop engaged, well-balanced learners through collaborative, caring relationships.
WELLNESS • EQUITY • ENGAGEMENT















































































































Acton-Boxborough Regional School District
15 Charter Road Acton, MA 01720

978-264-4700
www.abschools.org

Acton-Boxborough Regional School Committee Meeting March 2, 2023
Executive Session at 6:15 p.m. / Open Meeting at 7:00 p.m.
Annual Budget Hearing at 7:05 p.m.
Return to Business Meeting at 7:20 p.m. (approximately)
Administration Building Auditorium To view only: https://www.youtube.com/actontv1

Draft Minutes

Members Present: Evelyn Abayaah-Issah (6:40 p.m.), Ben Bloomenthal, Kyra Cook, Liz Fowlks
(6:18 p.m.), Adam Klein, Ginny Kremer (6:58 p.m.), Amy Krishnamurthy, Tessa
McKinley, Andrew Schwartz (6:18 p.m.), Yebin Wang (7:00 p.m.), Rebeccah
Wilson

Members Absent: none

Others: Marie Altieri, Deborah Bookis (7:00 p.m.), Peter Light, Beth Petr, Dave
Verdolino (7:00 p.m.)

—------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

1. CALL TO ORDER (6:15)
The Acton Boxborough Regional School Committee was called to order at 6:15 p.m. by
Chairperson Kyra Cook. She stated that the Open Meeting (not the executive session) would
be recorded by Acton TV.

Kyra stated the need to meet in Executive Session pursuant to
MGL Ch 30A, sec.21(a) Purpose 3: to discuss strategy with respect to collective bargaining
with the Acton-Boxborough Education Association (ABEA) because an open meeting may
have a detrimental effect on the bargaining position of the Committee.

She stated that the Committee expected to return to open session at approximately 7:00.

Adam Klein moved, Ben Bloomenthal seconded and it was anonymously,
VOTED by roll call: to meet in Executive Session pursuant to
MGL Ch 30A, sec.21(a) Purpose 3: to discuss strategy with respect to collective
bargaining with the Acton-Boxborough Education Association (ABEA) because an open
meeting may have a detrimental effect on the bargaining position of the Committee.
(YES: Bloomenthal, Cook, Klein, Krishnamurthy, McKinley, Wilson)

EXECUTIVE SESSION

RETURN TO OPEN MEETING (7:00)

2. CHAIRPERSON’S WELCOME - Kyra Cook

1

http://www.abschools.org
https://www.youtube.com/actontv1


Members of the public who wished to watch the meeting online were invited to use Acton tv’s
youtube channel (found at the top of the agenda). Kyra stated that the meeting was also being
recorded and would be posted on Acton TV’s website at actontv.org.

FY24 BUDGET HEARING (7:05)

1. Call to Order
The FY24 Budget Hearing was called to order at 7:05 p.m. by Chairperson Kyra Cook.

2. Chairperson’s Introduction - Kyra Cook
Please see detailed budget material posted with the February 16, 2023 School Committee
meeting materials on the abschools.org website.
https://sites.google.com/abschools.org/fy2024recommendedbudget/home

3. ABRSC FY24 Budget Overview - Peter Light
Mr. Light presented an overview including a recap on slide 14 of the $105.8M Budget:

Continued increase in volume & complexity of student needs
• Post-pandemic learning
• Multilingual students
• Students with IEPs

2-Year NET Reduction of 36.0 FTE
• 20.6 FTE FY23 (mostly non-certified)
• 15.4 FTE FY24 (mostly certified)

Reductions to the District budget over the last two years will continue to strain the
system and its ability to provide high-quality programs and services to students

4. Budget Feedback and Public Participation
There were no comments or questions from the Committee or the public. As noted on the
agenda, the FY24 Final Budget and Assessments vote will be taken at the next School
Committee meeting on 3/16/23.

5. Budget Hearing is Adjourned (approx 7:20)
GInny Kremer moved, Ben Bloomenthal seconded and it was unanimously,

VOTED: to adjourn the Budget Hearing at 7:20 p.m.

BUSINESS MEETING (approximately 7:20)

3. Discussion of the ABRSD FY24 Preliminary Budget - Dave Verdolino
Dave reviewed slides 16 and 17 re AB’s Chapter 70 calculation change from FY23 - FY24.
DESE said it was a fairly common mistake that we made based on the number of full time
students we used. The blue numbers are Dave’s estimates. In response to a question, Dave
said if our enrollment goes up we would get out of hold harmless more quickly. He is starting to

2

https://sites.google.com/abschools.org/fy2024recommendedbudget/home


look at All Day Kindergarten data and how it could affect the budget, but at this time, it’s
preliminary and there’s a long state budget process that still has to happen. Decisions should
not be made based on this preliminary information.

4. CHAIRPERSON’S WELCOME (7:30) - Kyra Cook
a. Public Participation

John Petersen spoke regarding ABPIP (Parent Involvement Project). He met with
Principal Joanie Dean to discuss creating a new vision for PIP Stem. People can
express interest or send questions to actonpip@gmail.com.

b. Superintendent’s Update - Peter Light
Mr. Light gave a shout out to all of the grounds people and custodians for their efforts,
especially on Tuesday after the snow when school stayed open. He also mentioned:
Congratulations! AB’s Regeneron Science Talent Search Scholar, Budget Update, Out
of Darkness Walk for the American Foundation for Suicide Prevention, Upcoming
Cartwheel Care Webinars - Positive Relationships with Screen-Based Technology, and
upcoming Community Coffees. Lastly, he invited any School Committee candidates
to meet with him to answer any questions.

5. NEW BUSINESS
a. Recommend to appoint Melissa Andrew as District Treasurer - VOTE - Peter Light

Dave Verdolino thanked Margaret Dennehy for all of her hard work as our District
Treasurer. She is retiring after seven years working for the district. Margaret oversaw
one of the most favorable bond issues ever for the District and will be missed.

Melissa Andrew has worked for the District for 18 years. She is currently the full time
Assistant Treasurer but would like to go part time as the Treasurer. Mr. Light stated that
he is very pleased to recommend Melissa for this position. He asked the Committee to
vote this now instead of in June so they can post the Assistant Treasurer position.

Amy Krishnamurthy moved, Tessa McKinley seconded and it was unanimously,
VOTED: to appoint Melissa Andrew as the District Treasurer effective
7/1/23 with gratitude.

b. Negotiations Update – Amy Krishnamurthy and Marie Altieri
i. Recommendation to Approve the Acton-Boxborough Education Association

(ABEA) Contract – VOTE
The proposed contract and MOA was recently ratified by the ABEA and was
brought forward to the School Committee for their approval. A copy was handed
out and will be posted to the website. Marie explained the very collaborative
process that was used. This began last Spring. Several Executive Sessions
were held with Amy Krishnamurthy chairing the Negotiations Subcommittee.
Per the Regional Agreement, the Acton Town Manager (or Boxborough Town

3

mailto:actonpip@gmail.com
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hacZkz3ivUNkkR-D8Xd5rFWZkdRJSwhsS3huJ5_IxT8/edit#heading=h.8o6bubxtrl5x
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hacZkz3ivUNkkR-D8Xd5rFWZkdRJSwhsS3huJ5_IxT8/edit#heading=h.msra27xvcs3q
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hacZkz3ivUNkkR-D8Xd5rFWZkdRJSwhsS3huJ5_IxT8/edit#heading=h.rydwto59963z
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hacZkz3ivUNkkR-D8Xd5rFWZkdRJSwhsS3huJ5_IxT8/edit#heading=h.rydwto59963z
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hacZkz3ivUNkkR-D8Xd5rFWZkdRJSwhsS3huJ5_IxT8/edit#heading=h.ctc1wxdhngki
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hacZkz3ivUNkkR-D8Xd5rFWZkdRJSwhsS3huJ5_IxT8/edit#heading=h.ctc1wxdhngki
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hacZkz3ivUNkkR-D8Xd5rFWZkdRJSwhsS3huJ5_IxT8/edit#heading=h.hje2t9cj6gla


Administrator) has a vote in this decision. John Magiaratti was in attendance.
Marie reviewed the proposed changes to the contract. Increased paid parental
leave for non birth parents was a change giving parity for parents. Mr. Light
noted that per slide 10, our educators are keenly aware of maintaining our
services for kids and the balance of responding to inflation and the kids. He was
grateful to our educators for this.

Committee members thanked all involved for their hard work and many
meetings. Amy stated that this was her third round of negotiations with the
ABEA and she appreciated their unique relationship with a very collaborative
group that wants to do what’s best for kids. It was confirmed that the budget
presented at the last meeting covers the costs for this new contract. An
assessment that is at the levy limit is possible with this agreement.

Tessa McKinley moved, Amy Krishnamurthy seconded and it was unanimously
VOTED: To approve the proposed Acton Boxborough Education Association
(ABEA) Contract for the period from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2026, as set
forth in the Memorandum of Agreement between the bargaining committees for
the ABEA and the School Committee.

ABEA President Mike Balulescu spoke about the union leaders across the state
currently in the news. When they strike it is because their negotiations failed.
He really appreciates working so collaboratively with the School Committee.

c. Discussion of School Committee Temporary Reorganization after Acton & Boxborough
Town Meetings - Kyra Cook
Mr. Light reviewed his memo regarding School Committee reorganization subsequent
to Town Meetings. With five School Committee members retiring, including the Chair
and both Vice Chairs, the Committee is in a unique position. The last meeting for the
three Acton members is April 13th and the first for the new members will be May 4th.
The last meeting for the two Boxborough members will be May 4th and the first for the
new members will be May 18th. Annual organization of the Committee is governed by
policy BDA and procedures BDA-R. While the current policy was created to allow a
current chair to stay in that position until August 1st, Mr.Light recommended that the
original version of the policy might be beneficial in this case. The reorganization
meeting was held at the first meeting after both Town Meetings were held and all new
members were in place. This would mean that Tessa McKinley (as Vice Chair) would
chair the meeting on May 4th (in current Chair, Kyra’s, absence). At the next meeting
(May 18), all of the new members would be in place and the reorganization could take
place. The Committee would have to vote to waive the current policy to do this.

Members discussed the pros and cons. Comments included:

4



● WIth many new members, this could be an opportunity for a new person to try
chairing temporarily before having to commit to a full year.

● The previous way can be hard for a new member. Chairing is a lot of work and
the behind the scenes work can be stressful. People have to be managed.
Adam and Ginny will be the most senior members.

● Other members respectfully disagreed and wanted to keep the process on the
18th. Mentors could be set up. Someone stepping in for two temporary weeks
and then voting on someone could be awkward.

● The public also needs to be managed. The real work is behind the scenes and
being able to articulate the message. Look for someone with the time to
communicate the district strategy.

● Members should try this out. This big turnover is an opportunity and
relationships with our community can be established.

● New members were asked what they think. A comment was made that with all
of the most senior members leaving, this is the year to mentor new ones. It
would be exciting to step up.

● There is something to be said for stability. A two week stint doesn’t cut it. This is
not the time to do it so briefly.

● The real work of the chair happens throughout the summer and beyond, not so
much in May. There will have to be a collaboration because the summer
session must be planned.

● It is only three meetings or a month and a half. It does include the
superintendent’s evaluation.

Members agreed to put this on the agenda for discussion at the next meeting.

6. ONGOING BUSINESS
a. Subcommittee and Members’ Reports

i. Budget Subcommittee - Adam Klein (2/13/23)
The budget dominated the discussions. The Administration was commended for
their hard work. Planning is starting for the Town Meeting presentations. All
members should plan to attend both Meetings.

ii. Capital Subcommittee - Ben Bloomenthal (2/13/23)
Hypothetical Restructuring Plans for FY23 - FY31 are being looked at regarding
additional borrowing for capital needs.

iii. Policy Subcommittee - Ginny Kremer (2/14/23)
Discussion of the Facilities Use policy and the fees being charged is starting to
wrap up. It is complicated for various reasons. A First Read will be done soon.
They are starting to look at the reporting to families of assessments/testing
policy (in conjunction with Amand Bailey from the SEPAC).

iv. Community Engagement - Andrew Schwartz
They have not met since the last meeting. Preparing for Town Meeting is on the
next agenda.

V. School Resource Officer subcommittee - Rebeccah Wilson (2/28/23)

5



Good cross section of people on the subcommittee. Next steps include further
data gathering. They will meet again on March 21.

b. Consent Agenda/Action Items - VOTE - Kyra Cook
i. Approval of ABRSC Meeting Minutes of 2/02/23, 2/13/23 (open), and 2/16/23
ii. Recommendation to approve Carol Huebner Early Childhood Program Parent

Teacher Association Budget
iii. Recommendation to approve McCarthy-Towne PTSO donations to Art Display

Shelving ($3536) and fifth grade field trip ($1000)
iv. Recommendation to approve Conant Garden Grant ($3000)

Adam Klein moved, Ginny Kremer seconded and it was unanimously,
VOTED: to approve the consent agenda with gratitude.

c. Statement of Warrants and Recommendation to Approve - VOTE - Kyra Cook
Liz Fowlks moved, Amy Krishnamurthy seconded and it was unanimously,

VOTED: to approve the warrants as presented. See memo for language.

FYI
● Student Enrollment - 2/1/23
● Boxborough Bill Celebration - 3/10/23
● Community Coffee 3/22/23 (virtual)
● Acton and Boxborough Town Election Calendars

4. ADJOURN
Tessa McKinley moved, Ginny Kremer seconded and it was unanimously,

VOTED: to adjourn the ABRSC at 8:49 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Beth Petr

List of Documents Used: agenda, agenda item summary sheets, FY24 Budget Hearing slides and
files, ABEA Memorandum of Agreement slides and draft 2023-2026, resume from M. Andrew, School
Committee Reorganization Meeting subsequent to Town Elections memo from P. Light 2/24/23, Draft
minutes of ABRSC meeting on 2/2/23, 2/13/23 and 2/16/23 from B. Petr, Carol Huebner Early
Childhood Program PTA FY23 Budget, Request for Approval of Donations over $1,000 from C.
Nealon McT Principal 2/3/23, Conant Garden Grant check 3/2/23, Warrant memo from D. Verdolino
2/17/23, Monthly Student Enrollment 2/1/23, Boxborough Bill Flyer, Acton and Boxborough Election
Calendars

NEXT MEETINGS: March 16 & March 30 at ABRSC at 7:00 p.m. in the Admin. Building Auditorium

6










































































	2023_04_12_agenda_and_packet
	4-13-23 SC Packet - Final
	4-13-23 SC Packet Complete.pdf
	4-13-23 SC Packet Part 1.pdf
	4-13-23 SC Packet Part 2.pdf

	03-02-2023 SC Meeting & B Hearing DRAFT mins.docx.pdf




